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FORM NP-1, page 1: Cover Page for Submission of a Neighborhood Plan

Neighborhood: Center of Salem liv
Eligible Municipality: City of Salem, New Jersey

Name of Nonprofit Organization Applying:

Legislative District: 3rd

Mayor: Robert L. Davis

Stand Up For Salem, Inc.

Name and Title of CEO/Executive Director: Chris Davenport. Executive Director

Address: Fenwick Plaza, Suite 107

City:  Salem State:  New Jersey Zip Code: 08079

Charity Registration Number: 0100383977

Contact Person: Chris Davenport

Contact Person’s Address: Fenwick Plaza, Suite 107

Phone: (856) 935-8800 Fax: (856) 935-4070 E-Mail:  Chris@salemcitynj.com

What is the time period for this Neighborhood Plan? 5 - 7 years

(The time period must be at least 2 years, and no more than 10 years)

Did you partner with another organization to develop the Neighborhood Plan? [] Yes (complete page 2)
No

Corporate Sponsor (If applicable): Provide information on the corporation that has committed its support to the
Nonprofit organization. Must be incorporated in the State of NJ.

Company Name: PSEG

Address:

P.0O. Box 236 Hancocks Bridge, New Jersey 08038

Contact Person (including title): Joseph Delmar, Manager, Nuclear Communications

Phone:

(856) 339-1934 Fax:

E-Mail:  Joseph.DelmarSr@PSEG.com

Certification:  To the best of my knowledge and belief, the data in this application are true and correct.
The governing body of the applicant has duly authorized the document.

C/\o-"rmn ot Boal ) Board /I’Zﬂuéaf

Title

Ny . 2000

Date
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Section 2: Executive Summary

Overview of the Center of Salem Neighborhood Plan

The City of Salem, New Jersey has received several grants in the past that have greatly improved
many areas of the City; however, this Plan is intended to directly benefit the Center of Salem
Neighborhood, from Oak to Olive Streets. The desired outcomes of this planning effort are
guided by a set of goals that speak directly to the issues and concerns identified by
Neighborhood residents, and include improving the condition of housing, revitalizing the local
economy, improving the accessibility and organization of community and recreation facilities,
improving the quality of public spaces and infrastructure, and improving social conditions.

The key outcomes of the plan comprise improving the Neighborhood’s overall appearance,
stabilizing homeownership rates, decreasing the rate of housing and commercial vacancies, and
establishing a stable economic framework that generates employment and encourages
redevelopment. The actions, strategies, timeframes and funding sources identified to achieve
these goals will be used to guide Stand Up for Salem, the corporate sponsor and the City of
Salem in implementing the Plan.

Description of Stand Up for Salem

Stand Up For Salem (SUFS) was incorporated in 1988 as a not-for-profit development
corporation for the purpose of improving the City of Salem. Charles Petersen, a local resident,
and John B. Campbell, a local businessman, inspired and initiated the program in response to a
perceived economic downturn in the City. A task force of 29 local leaders initiated six major goals
for the program:

Improve housing and housing opportunities

Expand employment opportunities

Improve business opportunities

Reduce social problems that impair individual and community advancement
Enhance community appearance, amenities and activities

Improve Salem’s image in the region and at home.

oukrwnNE

Major accomplishments of the organization during the initial years included fundraising and
construction of the “Greater Salem Community Center” now known as the John B. Campbell
Family and Fitness Center; the development of Fenwick Plaza, a half-block retail and commercial
center still owned and operated by Mannington Mills Inc.; and the development of three
“Welcome to Salem” signs. Due to internal organizational issues, Stand Up For Salem became
inactive in the early 1990’s; however, in 1999, the incorporated agency was utilized by the City of
Salem and local volunteers as the vehicle for obtaining the designation of a New Jersey Main
Street Program from the State of New Jersey. Stand Up For Salem was reborn as the Salem
Main Street Program, modeled after the National Main Street Approach. The mission of Salem
Main Street is to “Stimulate business opportunity, historic preservation and community growth
through economic restructuring, promotion, design and organization.” Salem Main Street follows
the national four-point approach to downtown development, reflected by its four working
committees: Design, Promotion, Economic Restructuring and Organization. In recognition of a
need for real estate development for the central business district of Salem, SUFS partnered with
the City of Salem to develop a Main Street Redevelopment Plan, with SUFS identified as the
developer. Implementation of this plan has resulted in the construction of the 37,000 SF Finlaw
Office Building, the 64-unit, age-restricted Salem Senior Village, Hires Avenue, the new service
street behind Broadway, pedestrian-friendly streetscape enhancements on Broadway between
Chestnut and Walnut Streets and the 280-space Walnut Street Parking Garage.
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Section 3: Neighborhood Description and Statement of Need
Neighborhood Description

The Center of Salem Neighborhood is located in the City of Salem, in Salem County, New Jersey.
The neighborhood is bounded by Broadway (NJ Route 49) to the north, Grieves Parkway to the
south, Olive Street to the east and Oak Street to the west. New Market Street, running
north/south, is generally located in the center of the neighborhood, and parallels two other major
north/south neighborhood connections; Walnut Street to the east and Chestnut Street to the west.
The neighborhood’s only internal east/west connection is Wesley Street. Census Tracts 221 and
220 comprise the Center of Salem Neighborhood. Surrounding jurisdictions include Mannington,
to the northeast, Quinton, to the southeast, and Elsinboro, to the southwest. Fenwick Creek
borders the City of Salem to the north, northeast, and northwest. Maps of the City can be found
in the appendix. The Neighborhood covers an area of approximately 0.20 mi’ and has a
perimeter of little less than two miles.

According to the 2000 U.S. Census, the Center of Salem Neighborhood comprises portions of
two different Census Tracts. The western portion of the neighborhood, from New Market to Oak
Streets, falls within Census Tract 221 (Block Group 1), Blocks 1000, 1001, 1015-1020 and 1023.
The eastern portion of the neighborhood, from New Market to Olive Streets, falls within Census
Tract 220 (Block Group 1), approximately 40 percent of Block 1009, all of Blocks 1010-1019, and
approximately 70 percent of Block 1020. Approximately 42 percent of the residential population
of Census Tract 220 (Block Group 1) lives within the Neighborhood, while approximately 24
percent of the residential population of Census Tract 221 (Block Group 1) lives within the
Neighborhood.

As of the 2000 Census, the Blocks of Census Tracts 221 and 220 that comprise the
Neighborhood contain a total of 1,312 people and 330 families. Approximately 12 percent of the
population was 65 years of age or older, and approximately 33 percent of the Neighborhood’s
population was under the age of 18. As of 2000, there were a total of 604 housing units, of which
approximately 202 were owner-occupied, 285 were renter-occupied, and 117 were vacant.

Need for Neighborhood Revitalization

The City of Salem has suffered from a decline in population for approximately two decades.
Between the years 1990 and 2000, the City's population decreased by approximately 15 percent,
from 6,883 to 5,857 people. It is estimated that the City’s population in 2008 was 5,661,
indicating an approximate decline in population of almost 18 percent over 18 years. It appears as
though the decline in population has remained at a rate of approximately one percent per year.

In 2000, Pennrose Properties was invited by the Salem City Council to review potential
development opportunities in the City. The outcome was a redevelopment plan which included
the rehabilitation of historic homes and creation of affordable apartments in the Hedge Carpenter
Thompson Neighborhood, called the Salem Historic Homes project. At the time development
was initiated, the six blocks that comprised the Hedge Carpenter Thompson Neighborhood were
characterized by littered, vacant, abandoned and burned homes, and the City of Salem ranked
the 10™ lowest in per-capita income in the state of New Jersey. By 2003, the Hedge Carpenter
Thompson Neighborhood was listed on the National Register of Historic Places, and offered 76
historically-renovated, energy-efficient homes and 28 new, affordable, energy-efficient
apartments. The Salem Historic Homes project was funded by a series of investment tax credits,
historic tax credits, federal grants and state grants, and earned the 2004 New Jersey Future
Smart Growth Award and the 2006 National Housing and Rehabilitation J. Timothy Anderson
Award for Excellence in Historic Rehabilitation: Best Scattered Site Development.
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Recent improvements to the City’s downtown, located at the intersection of Broadway and Market
Street, have included the restoration of several historic structures, the construction of a parking
deck and elderly housing community, and the transfer of state offices to a new, in-town office
complex. Although partially located within the Center of Salem Neighborhood, these
improvements to the downtown have not directly benefited Neighborhood residents in terms of
job growth, retail or commercial opportunities. However, the adjacency of the Neighborhood to
the downtown is considered an asset. Many Salem residents perceive that, in order for proposed
City improvements to be successful, the percentage of homeownership must be higher, the City
must attract more businesses and generate more employment, housing must be affordable,
accessible public transportation must be provided and public safety must be a priority.

Housing

The majority of the Center of Salem Neighborhood is residential; however, the northern edge of
the planning area runs along Broadway, which is considered part of Salem’s downtown core.
Retail and commercial uses are located primarily along Broadway, but extend as far south as
Carpenter and Beldin Streets. Of the 2,867 housing units in the City of Salem, 604, or 21
percent, are located within the Center of Salem Neighborhood. The majority of housing in the
planning area is single-family detached, although some single-family homes have been divided
into separate apartment units. Although most residents find that the current housing stock is fairly
affordable, approximately only 33 percent of homes in the Neighborhood are owner-occupied,
while 47 percent are renter-occupied and 19 percent are vacant.

In June of 2010, Stand Up for Salem administered a building conditions survey of approximately
372 properties in the Center of Salem Neighborhood. Approximately 30 percent of these
properties were rated as being in “excellent” condition, 40 percent were rated as being in “good”
condition, 19 percent were rated as being in “fair” condition and seven percent were rated as
being in “poor” condition. Of the properties rated “excellent,” six were vacant, of the properties
rated “good,” 39 were vacant, of the properties rated “fair,” 28 were vacant, and of the properties
rated “poor,” 18 were vacant. Using a combination of tax information from April 2010 and
observatory data from the building conditions survey, approximately 103 properties, or 27 percent
of the properties surveyed, were considered to be vacant.

Under the State of New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency, the entire City of Salem
is designated as a Smart Growth Area and CHOICE Municipality, and the Center of Salem
Neighborhood falls within a designated Urban Target Area. As a State of New Jersey Housing
and Mortgage Finance Agency-designated Smart Growth Area, Salem has been identified for
growth as a result of a petition for Plan Endorsement approved by the State Planning
Commission. As a State of New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency-designated
CHOICE Municipality, the City is eligible for financing from the Agency for the development of
newly constructed and substantially rehabilitated homeownership (owner-occupied primary
residence) housing. The program features below-market interest rate construction loans and
construction subsidy funding for developers, and favorable end-loan financing for eligible
homebuyers. As a State of New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency and HUD-
designated Urban Target Area, the Neighborhood comprises census tracts in which at least 70%
of the families have incomes that are 80% or less than the statewide median family income. This
program offers a below-market, fixed interest rate for home buyers.

Feedback from the public forum indicated that many residents who currently rent housing in
Salem would like to own their homes, but lack the funds necessary to make essential home
improvements. Residents at the forum expressed concern over the lack of responsibility and
initiative taken by their absentee landlords to make these improvements, as well as the efforts of
these landlords to avert such duties and responsibilities, which include offering their tenants the
option of purchasing their rental units.
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Due to the lack of obligatory housing maintenance on the part of absentee landlords, and the
number of homeowners who lack the funds necessary to make basic home improvements,
approximately seven percent of the total number of homes in the Center of Salem Neighborhood
appear to be in various states of disrepair, based on the June 2010 building conditions survey.

Economic Development

Using a percentage of 2000 Census Tract information for Tracts 220 and 221, approximately 430
residents of the Neighborhood are employed, and approximately 60 residents of the
Neighborhood are unemployed. The median household income of Census Tract 220 (Block
Group 1) is $19,818, and approximately 28 percent of residents within that Census Tract have
incomes that qualify them as living below the poverty line. The median household income of
Census Tract 221 (Block Group 1) is $35,915, and approximately 23 percent of residents within
that Tract have incomes below the poverty line.

Community Insights’ 2008 retail inventory for the City of Salem found that, within a quarter mile of
Broadway and Market Street, there is a large demand for neighborhood retail and everyday
commerce that is not being met. The study found that, of the 59 retail storefront properties on
Broadway between 5™ and 9" Streets, 19 were vacant and ten were occupied by non-retail uses.
The remaining uses on Broadway suffer from the corridor’s inconsistent appearance; however,
the strengths of existing development along this corridor include the historic character of its
buildings, the sidewalks, and the available parking.

Recreation and Community Facilities

The John B. Campbell Family Fitness Center, Salem High School (9™ to 12" grades), Salem
Middle School (3rd to 8" grades), John Fenwick Elementary School (kindergarten to 2 grades),
the Salem County Community College and the Salem Senior Village are all located within the
planning area boundaries. The senior living center is located on Broadway, while the fitness
center and schools are located south of Smith Street and north of Grieves Parkway. Athletic
fields that serve the neighborhood include the high school football field, which abuts the southern
edge of Smith Street, and two large baseball fields, which are located at the corner of Oak Street
and Grieves Parkway. Although the Neighborhood is surrounded by programmed open space
and recreational facilities, public feedback identified that the community needs to market safe,
programmed activities toward youth in the neighborhood.

Infrastructure/Public Spaces

Although the condition of housing in the Neighborhood has deteriorated over the years, the
sidewalk framework and general walkability of the community are tremendous assets. The
historic sidewalks and lighting along Broadway are fairly well-maintained, as is the new extension
of, and streetscape improvements along, Hires Avenue.

Social Issues

Frequently acknowledged at the public forum was the lack of adult supervision of children and
teens, which has led to a growing number of youth engaging in drug and criminal activities.
Residents discussed several potential solutions for this issue, which included increased police
visibility and involvement in the community, and the development, outreach and marketing of
structured and organized activities for youth. Residents also discussed the possibility of
establishing a Boys & Girls Club or a Big Brothers/Big Sisters program to help engage youth in
safe activities in a controlled environment.
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NJ Household Information by Tract Report

COUNTYNAME

COUNTY CODE

(0% - 30%)
(31% - 50%)

(50% - 80%)

(81+%)

Thursday, May 20, 2010

ESalem County

VERYLOW HH

LOW HH

MOD HH

L/M SUBTOTAL

OVERMOD HH

TOTAL

MUNICIPALITY  [Salem city
TRACT {022000
[ 408 | 42.02%
t 226 ’ l 2327%
; 223 ] l 22.97%
| 857 | 35 26%)
k 14] | 11.74%
971 100.00%
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NJ Household Information by Tract Report

COUNTYNAME  Salem County | MUNICIPALITY  [Salem city
COUNTY CODE 033 | TRACT [022100
(0% - 30%) VERYLOW HH | 144 | 26.57%
(31% - 50%) LOW HH i 66 | | 12.18%)
(50% - 80%) MOD HH | 136 | 25.00%
L/M SUBTOTAL | 346 | | 63.84%]
(81+%) OVERMOD HH | 196 | 1 36.16%
TOTAL 542 100.00%

Thursday, May 20, 2010

22



PROPOSED STRATEGIES &
ACTIVITIES
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Section 4: Vision Statement

Vision Statement

We would like to see our neighborhood become a clean, safe, attractive and affordable
place to live with accessible recreational and employment opportunities for all.

Goals, Outcomes, Strategies and Actions

Goal 1: Improve the condition of housing.

Goal 2: Revitalize the local economy.

Goal 3: Improve the accessibility and structure of community and recreation facilities.
Goal 4: Improve the quality of public spaces and infrastructure.

Goal 5: Improve social conditions.

The goals of the plan reflect the major areas of need in Salem, as described in Section 3, which
include housing, economic revitalization, community facilities, public spaces, infrastructure and
social issues. The chart within this Section illustrates the outcomes projected to attain these
goals, the strategies needed to produce the outcomes, and the associated actions to be taken to
support these strategies. Additionally, a level of priority is assigned to each activity to guide
implementation of the plan. The level of priority was determined on a basis of practicality and
costs associated with implementation. For this effort, “Short-term” indicates a timeframe of one to
two years from the date of plan approval, “Mid-term” a timeframe of three to four years, and
“Long-term” a timeframe of five or more years.

Overall, it has been found in Salem that incremental implementation is most successful and
provides the best results. It is recommended that the maintenance activities, historic
designations and infrastructure improvements be implemented on an annual, block-by-block
basis. It is assumed that, over a period of time, these incremental improvements would
accumulate and establish large areas of redevelopment in the Neighborhood.
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Section 4: Review of Adopted Plans

City of Salem Master Plan Historic Preservation Element (1991)

This master plan element promotes and encourages programs that focus on historic preservation,
education, the general pleasure and welfare of residents, protection and enhancement of the
community’s beauty, a strong economy, and a legal foundation for using Home Rule power to
accomplish goals. Recommendations from this plan include establishing a Historic Preservation
Commission, enlarging existing historic districts, and designating new historic districts and
landmarks.

Master Plan Reexamination Report (2002)

The City of Salem Planning Board produced a reexamination of the City’s municipal plans and
regulations, as required by the state of New Jersey every six years. The report identified major
accomplishments for the City since implementing the former Master Plan. These included
adopting the Main Street Redevelopment Plan, looking into designating Oak Street as an historic
district, enhancing recreation opportunities in the community, and focusing on increased
homeownership along Carpenter Street. Recommendations from the report included
strengthening the qualities of housing and life in the community, improving historic preservation
efforts, evaluating open space and producing an economic plan.

City of Salem Main Street Redevelopment Plan (2004)

The 2003 Main Street Revitalization Master Plan was adopted in 2004 as the City of Salem Main
Street Redevelopment Plan. In addition to providing a comprehensive design template for
accommodating development opportunities in the center of Salem, the 2003 Main Street
Revitalization Master Plan also encompassed a Transportation Inventory and a Land Use
Regulation and Policy Review document. The Transportation Inventory provided a balanced
approach for the success and livability of Downtown Salem. It recommended that Broadway
Road and Market Street be made accessible to regional traffic, as well as accommodate the
needs of businesses, residents and pedestrians. The Land Use Regulation and Policy Review
provided a review of all relevant City planning documents to date.

Since its adoption in 2004, the City of Salem Main Street Redevelopment Plan has directly led to
the completion of several significant Stand Up For Salem-owned projects, including the Salem
Senior Village, renovation of the Finlaw office building and parking garage, development of the
streetscape along Hires Avenue, and preliminary development of the future town square.

Bringing Back Businesses to Salem (2008) and Salem Strategies — Part Two (2009)
In 2008, JGSC Retail Consulting conducted a community insights retail survey and
comprehensive report on retail opportunities and challenges in downtown Salem, titled Bringing
Back Businesses to Salem. Using customized research techniques, an in-depth assessment of
the economic realities of downtown Salem was provided which offered strategies for recruiting
sustainable retail businesses and growing Salem’s retail market area. This report is currently
being used to guide the City’s priorities and strategies for recruiting businesses.

The Salem Strategies — Part Two document established Salem’s goals for revitalization,
prescribed strategies to achieve those goals, and outlined the tactics in sequence that should be
undertaken to accomplish each strategy.

Open Space and Recreation Plan (2009)

The City of Salem Open Space and Recreation Plan documented the public and private
resources that provide existing recreation and open space opportunities for the City. The plan
contains an inventory of all public and private land and water areas available for recreation,
including protected open space and recreation facilities. The inventory catalogs the type, size,
location, degree of protection, form of ownership, and other information for all areas of recreation
and conservation in the City.
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Phone (856) 935-4550
(856) 935-4095

FAX

CITY OF SALEM, NEW JERSEY
17 New Market Street
Salem, NJ 08079
ROBERT L. DAVIS
Mayor

September 30, 2010

Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit Program
NJ Department of Community Affairs

Division of Housing & Community Resources
101 South Broad Street, 5" Floor

P. O. Box 811

Trenton, NJ 08625-0811

Attn: Bradley Harrington

RE: NRTC NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN

Dear Mr. Harrington:

On behalf of the City of Salem, please accept this correspondence as confirmation of the
City’s support for the draft Center of Salem Neighborhood Plan being submitted by Stand Up
For Salem, Inc. (“SUFS”) in connection with the Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit
(“NRTC”) application.

The proposed Neighborhood Plan is consistent with plans adopted by the City including
the City Master Plan, the City’s Strategic Plan and the Revitalization Master Plan. The
Neighborhood Plan is also consistent with the Redevelopment Plan adopted by the City under the
New Jersey Redevelopment Law for the Main Street Redevelopment Zone and there is
substantial overlap between that Redevelopment Zone and the area encompassed by the Center
of Salem Neighborhood Plan.

Approval of the Center of Salem Neighborhood Plan in to the NRTC Program is critical
to the City’s revitalization/redevelopment effort and accordingly we respectfully request your
favorable consideration in relation to the application.

Sincerely,
City of Salem

we St S B

Robert L. Davis, Mayor

:bkb

NANEWASALEM\NRTC\Harrington Let 092910.Docx
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PROJECTED OUTCOMES

35



36



Section 5: Projected Outcomes Performance Measurement System

Using Form NP-2 (on the following pages), the anticipated outcomes of the Neighborhood Plan
have been evaluated and measured, using the State Plan and NRTC Objectives listed below.

State Plan Goals

Revitalize the State’s cities and towns.

Conserve the State’s natural resources.

Promote beneficial economic growth, development, and renewal for all residents of New
Jersey.

Protect the environment, prevent and clean-up pollution.

Provide adequate public facilities and services at reasonable costs.

Preserve and enhance areas with historic, cultural, scenic, open space and recreational
value.

Ensure sound, integrated planning and implementation Statewide.

NRTC Objectives

1)
2)

3)

4)

Alleviate poverty by increasing total household income.

Increase disposable income and purchasing power by increasing access to facilities and
services at affordable prices, such as housing and health care.

Reduce unemployment, including access to jobs, creating business activities, and
strengthening existing neighborhood-based business enterprises.

Contribute to enhancing the quality of life in the neighborhood, as reflected in the physical
and/or programmatic improvements, in ways that have the potential to increase the
market competitiveness of the neighborhood, and its attractiveness to potential
homebuyers and renters. Such improvements include the increased commercial activity,
improved open space and recreation facilities, and enhanced community, social and
educational services.
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FORM NP4  ORGANIZATION PROFILE

I. Organization Characteristics

Name of Organization: Stand Up For Salem

Annual Operating Budget:  $237,100.00 (2009/2010)

Date of Incorporation: 1988

Purpose for which the organization was originally formed: Improve housing and housina
opportunities, expand employment opportunities, improve business opportunities, reduce social problems that

impair individual and community advancement, enhance community appearance, amenities and activities, and
improve Salem's image in the region and at home.

Current Mission Statement: The mission of Salem Main Street is to stimulate business opportunity,
historic preservation and community growth through economic restructuring, promotion, design and organization.

II. Population Characteristics

Geographical area(s) served by the organization: Salem Citv. Salem. New Jersey

Clientele served by the organization: Age Al
Ethnicity Al
Income Characteristics Very-low to moderately-low

III. Programming Characteristics

Briefly describe the primary services provided by the organization. Please include the number of
clients served and/or number of units produced and/or managed in the last fiscal year.
Stand Up For Salem is a not-for-profit economic development agency focused on the revitalization of the center
of Salem. The primary program of Stand Up For Salem has been the volunteer-based Salem Main Street Program.
Stand Up For Salem is also the redeveloper of the Main Street Redevelopment Zone of central Salem City.
As such, Stand Up For Salem has undertaken substantial real estate development projects, including the
Salem Senior Village project, which is a 64-unit, low-income senior housing project that was financed by NJHMFA,
and the Finlaw Office Building, which is a 54,000 SF commercial office building and five-deck parking garage financed
through a lease agreement with the State of New Jersey.
IV. Organizational Staffing Characteristics

Please complete the following for your organization as a whole:
Total Number of Staff Positions: 1(full-time); 3(part-time)
Number of Occupied Positions: 4

Number of Vacant Positions: 0
Number of Volunteers: 260

Page 13 of 13
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Section 7: Organization Profile

Stand Up For Salem was incorporated in 1988 as a not-for-profit development corporation for the
purpose of providing economic development to the City of Salem. Major accomplishments of the
organization during its initial years included the development of Fenwick Plaza, a half-block retail
and commercial center that is still owned and operated by Mannington Mills Inc., and the
installation of three “Welcome to Salem” signs at the north, east and west ends of town. In the
early 1990’'s, Stand Up For Salem merged with the Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce, but
later became inactive.

In 1999, “Stand Up For Salem” was reactivated. In 2000, Stand Up For Salem, the City of Salem
and local volunteers initiated the “Salem Main Street Program,” after obtaining designation from
the New Jersey Main Street Program. The mission of the Salem Main Street Program is to
“Stimulate business opportunity, historic preservation, and community growth through economic
restructuring, promotion, design and organization.” The Salem Main Street Program follows the
national Main Street Program four-point approach to downtown development, which is also
reflected by its four working committees: Design, Promotion, Economic Restructuring and
Organization.

Financial Resources

Stand Up For Salem funds its programs through a combination of donations and grants. The
following is a list of Stand Up For Salem’s funding sources from the most recent fiscal year:

- Salem City government

- Salem County government

- Salem County Arts Program Grant

- New Jersey Department of Community Affairs Business Recruitment Grant
- New Jersey Department of Community Affairs NRTC Planning Grant
- Local commercial business contributions

- Chamber of Commerce contributions

- Local financial institution contributions

- Citizen contributions

- Local utility company contributions

- Corporate business contributions

- Stand Up For Salem / Salem Main Street event ticket sales

- Fundraising events

- Donations

SUMMARY OF DCA GRANTS RECEIVED BY STAND UP FOR SALEM (2005-2010)

Year Agency Amount Purpose Grant Status
Stand Up For Neighborhood Salem Main Street Grant
2010 Saler% $25,000.00 Revitalization Tax Revitalization Master Revision
Credit Planning Plan - Expanded Executed
Community Insights
2009 Stand Up For $39,825.00 Smart Future 2006 Program to Revitalize Closed

Salem

Downtown Salem
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Relationship with Community

Stand Up For Salem has developed a strong and supportive relationship with residents, the City
and County governments, local and regional non-profits and local corporations. Beginning with
its “rebirth” in 1999, and followed by the adoption of the Main Street Revitalization Master Plan in
2004, Stand Up For Salem has poured its efforts into rejuvenating Salem’s historic downtown.
The City has since benefitted from the construction of new residential and office developments,
the implementation of streetscape improvements and the initiation of several seasonal community
events.

Stand Up for Salem conducts a significant amount of community outreach for its numerous
annual and seasonal programs, as well as maintains the City’s webpage (www.salemcitynj.com).
Using the webpage, Stand Up For Salem is able to inform the public of all current volunteer
efforts and redevelopment activities taking place in the City. The site also provides information to
residents regarding City events and activities, provides City government contact information, and
establishes a format for receiving and dispersing communication between residents and the City
government. On average, Stand Up For Salem attracts more than 60 volunteers, annually, who
aid in its redevelopment efforts.

Stand Up For Salem is guided by a Board of Directors; members of which include community
leaders, elected officials, property and business owners, institutional representatives, and
representatives of local corporations. Organizational support for Stand Up For Salem is provided
by its four Action Committees, which each oversee a vital function of the organization’s mission:
the Promotion Committee, the Design Committee, the Economic Restructuring Committee, the
Organization Committee, and the Finlaw Project Committee.
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Section 7: Organization Capacity and Experience

Organizational Capacity

An organizational chart depicting how Stand Up For Salem plans to administer the NRTC
Program is shown below. The Board of Directors of Stand Up For Salem will continue to oversee
all decisions and functions of the non-profit organization. The Executive Director of Stand Up For
Salem will continue to serve as the full-time administrative contact for the organization, in addition
to coordinating and supervising all functions and activities administered by Stand Up For Salem.

Currently, the Executive Director for Stand Up For Salem works with a part-time bookkeeper and
volunteer to pay bills, record deposits and perform reconciliations. All financial reports are vetted
with the Stand Up For Salem Board Treasurer, Kevin Danna. Stand Up For Salem hired the New
Vistas Corporation, headquartered in Northfield, New Jersey, to manage the Finlaw Building and
the Walnut Street Parking Garage. Stand Up For Salem also hired Vanguard Real Estate,
headquartered in Maryland, to manage the Salem Senior Village. Both companies have on-site
staff who manage the day-to-day needs and finances of these facilities.

Because Stand Up For Salem comprises only one full-time employee (the Executive Director),
and two part-time employees, the organization plans to use a portion of the NRTC funds to hire a
part-time NRTC Program Coordinator. The person holding this position would be in charge of
locating and retrieving additional sources of funding, directing NRTC funds to appropriate
projects, engaging the community as needed, coordinating and organizing NRTC projects, and
staffing NRTC projects. The Tri-County Community Action Partnership would work in conjunction
with the NRTC Program Coordinator to coordinate specific housing-related projects on an as-
needed basis, such as providing a housing mortgage counselor to help residents apply for loans.
The NRTC Program Coordinator would also have the ability to utilize, at his or her discretion, the
existing Stand Up For Salem volunteer committees. These committees would be expected to
perform duties specific to their functions, as part of a coordinated effort, to facilitate project
implementation.

STAND UP FOR SALEM ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Board of Directors]

Stand Up For Salem Executive Director Chris Davenport
I—{ NRTC Program Coordinator TBD
|

Tri-County Community Action Partnership Utausha Rivera

|Economic Restructuring Committee George Reesel—

| Design Committee Rebecca Call |
| Organization Committee Jim Waddington [——

| Promotion Committee Kim Mooney ||

Development and Service Delivery Capacity

Since 1999, Stand Up For Salem has stimulated economic growth from decades of decline,
abandonment and hopelessness in Salem, has increased real estate values in the downtown, has
become fully accredited and been named one of the highest-rated New Jersey Main Street
Programs for eight consecutive years. In order to stimulate economic growth, the organization
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has continually provided several business recruitment and retention services for the City of
Salem, including, but not limited to, sponsoring and organizing the annual Block Party, the Salem
Farmers Market, the Town Yard Sale, Gospel Fest, the Yuletide Festival and seasonal concert
series. Specific business recruitment and retention programs administered by Stand Up For
Salem include the Fagcade Improvement Program, “Starting Your Own Business” workshops, and
several work projects.

Perhaps the most significant achievement of Stand Up For Salem has been implementing the
Main Street Revitalization Master Plan, in partnership with the City of Salem, the State of New
Jersey and several developers. Physical improvements to the downtown that have been initiated
and directed by the organization include the installation of flags on Broadway and Market Street,
the renovation and construction of the 37,000 SF Finlaw Building, the construction of the Salem
Senior Village (64 age-restricted apartments), the construction of Hires Avenue, streetscape
improvements on Broadway, between Chestnut and Walnut Streets, and the construction and
management of the 280-space Walnut Street Parking Garage. In conjunction with this new
development, Stand Up For Salem worked with Salem City and Salem County to recruit the
Salem County New Jersey Motor Vehicles Commission, the New Jersey Department of Children
and Families, the New Jersey Public Defender's Office and the Salem County Improvement
Authority to relocate to downtown Salem.

Capacity of Partners

Tri-County Community Action Partnership

Tri-County Community Action Partnership is the federally-designated Community Action Program
(CAP) for Cumberland, Gloucester and Salem counties in southern New Jersey. The agency's
mission is to provide services that improve the clients’ quality of life and promote self-sufficiency.
Since becoming a CAP in 1987, Tri-County has worked with residents, governments, other
agencies and private sector institutions to help tens of thousands of local residents identify and
overcome barriers to self-sufficiency. In the past year, over 54,000 individuals received services
at dozens of sites in the tri-county region and from nearly 50 different programs that aim to guide
participants toward a future of self-sufficiency. Much of the agency's impact on the community is
measured in terms of individual progress, services provided, or crises averted.

The agency's more than 400 employees form a network of professional teachers, social workers,
counselors, nutritionists and program planners, all dedicated to making our communities better
places to live and work for all residents. The staff is guided by President/CEO Albert B. Kelly,
founder of Tri-County and Senior Vice President Edward Bethea. Together, the agency's senior
management team has more than 40 years of experience in the community service
and community development fields and oversees an annual operating budget of $50 million. Tri-
County Community Action Partnership is governed by a volunteer board of directors. Its members
represent businesses, elected officials and the community it serves.

Specific services offered by the Tri-County Commission in Salem include LIHEAP, emergency
services, rental assistance, temporary housing, a family success center and WIC. Approximately
11 percent of the agency’s workforce is located at the Salem office. Sources of funding that
support the Tri-County Commission include DHHS/Administration for Children and Families,
DHHS/Administration for Children and Families/ARRA, DHHS/Administration for Children and
Families/EHS Expansion/ARRA, New Jersey Department of Education (PQEA), USDA/Child
Care Food Program, Cumberland County Cultural and Heritage Commission, New Jersey
Department of Education (Abbott), Delta Dental.
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John B. Campbell Family and Fitness Center

The John B. Campbell Family and Fitness Center, is a non-profit organization, located in the
Center of Salem Neighborhood. The Campbell Center serves as a cornerstone of family and
community in Salem County, and its mission is to provide a place for families to get fit, for
children and youth to reach their potential, and for community to come together.

The Campbell Center serves as a safe haven, in which families, children and youth can thrive, by
providing:

State-of-the-art fitness facilities and equipment

Diverse fitness classes for all interests and levels of physical ability

Health education, awareness classes and information

A wide variety of events and activities tailored to all age groups

Child/daycare

Open gym times

Special services, waived admission fees and free programs for children and youth,
including the summer camp, basketball camp, basketball outreach, strength and
conditioning programs, and weekly open gym sessions

The Campbell Center’'s primary funding sources include membership fees and the generous
support of private donors, business and the community.
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PARTICIPATORY PLANNING
REQUIREMENTS
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Section 8: Description of Participatory Planning Process

Community involvement in the NRTC planning effort comprised the initiation and engagement of
the Center of Salem Neighborhood Steering Committee, the facilitation of two public meetings
and the execution of a public survey.

Center of Salem Steering Committee

In the spring of 2010, Stand Up for Salem asked community leaders, with the passion and
commitment to make a change in the Center of Salem Neighborhood, to become members of the
Center of Salem Steering Committee. Throughout the duration of this planning process, the
Steering Committee gathered monthly to discuss community issues and share ideas on ways to
improve the Neighborhood. The minutes of the meetings held by the Steering Committee can be
found in Section 8.

Public Forum

The first public meeting, or, public forum, was held on May 12, 2010 at the Fenwick Elementary
School and was attended by approximately 30 citizens. Advertisements and flyers announcing
the meeting were distributed to businesses on Broadway and Market Street, mailed to residents
in the area, and posted in storefronts, on the Stand Up for Salem Facebook webpage, and in the
City paper, Today’s Sunbeam. At the meeting, participants were asked to rate the Center of
Salem Neighborhood as excellent, good, fair or poor, and to discuss why they rated the
Neighborhood as they did. Using a map of the Neighborhood, participants were asked to identify
the areas of the Neighborhood that need improvement and the areas that represent the
Neighborhood’s best qualities. Finally, the participants were asked to perform a ‘visioning’
exercise, during which they explained what they would like to see in the Neighborhood if they
were to return in ten years. The information gleaned from these exercises was used to generate
the matrices in Sections 4, 5 and 6. The results of this meeting can be found in Section 8.

Citizen Survey

A group of volunteers with Stand Up for Salem executed a citizen survey in the late spring/early
summer of 2010; the results shed light on the community issues and concerns that influenced the
goals, strategies and actions, described in detail, in Section 4. The group, which canvassed City
residents inside and outside of the Neighborhood boundaries, received approximately 25
responses to their “short survey” and 52 responses to their “long” survey. Surveyors approached
each potential respondent with a cover letter explaining the purpose of the survey, and a standard
greeting. The cover letter, canvassing strategy and greeting used by the surveyors are included
in Section 8. The questions posed in both surveys were generally the same, but were adjusted in
response to the amount of time respondents had to answer each question. The results of both
surveys can also be found in Section 8.

Public Meeting

The second public meeting was held on October 6, 2010 at the Tri-County Community Services
building. Approximately 35 citizens attended the meeting. Advertisements and flyers announcing
the meeting were distributed to businesses on Broadway and hand delivered to several
residences within the Neighborhood boundary. Additionally, an article was posted in Today's
Sunbeam two days prior to the meeting. A PowerPoint presentation was given, which addressed
the rules and regulations of the Neighborhood Revitalization Plan, key existing conditions
information, key findings from the first public meeting/community forum and the residential
surveys, key recommendations from the Draft Neighborhood Revitalization Plan and the next
steps of the process. After the presentation, residents were encouraged to ask questions and
provide comments on what was presented. Finally, residents were made aware of, and
encouraged to participate in, the Draft Plan public review and comment period.
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH
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Live in or near this neighborhood? COME AND BE HEARD!!

CENTER OF SALEM
NEIGHBORHOOD
(OAK TO OLIVE)

OMMUNIT
FORUM

WEDNESDAY, MAY 12T™
/PM
JOHN FENWICK MIDDLE SCHOOL CAFETERIA

The purpose of this forum is to bring neighborhood people together to express concerns, AND
suggest changes and improvements that could make THIS NEIGHBORHOOD a better place to live.
Yes, this is a REAL forum!

Salem Main Street is working on a “neighborhood plan” that truly represents the wishes of the Center
of Salem neighborhood. This will likely FOCUS ON ISSUES OF housing, economic development,
recreation and other quality of life FACTORS. The priorities of this plan will be directly related to

concerns expressed in this and other community forums.

It is our intent to use this plan for funding applications for IMPROVING the neighborhood.

Please come and be heard! Your views will be recorded and will count. Any questions? Please
don’t hesitate to contact us at 856-935-8800.

Chris Davenport
Salem Main Street Program, A program of Stand Up For Salem
142 W. Broadway, Salem, NJ 08079
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Today's Sunbeam, Salem, N.J., Wednesday, May 12, 2010 A-3

THE COUNTY

TODAY

Friends Village

lage Festival and Antique Car Show on May 15, 11 a.m. -3

p.m. in Woodstown.

Daretown workshop

Special to the Sunb gd}‘ h‘” Bettﬁl'gm
- rman, liaison to the Cul-
toneiws@sjnewsco.com tural and Heritage Commis-

SALEM — On Saturday,
10 a.m. to 1 p.m., the Salem
County Arts Alliance and the
Salem County Cultural and
Heritage Commission are
sponsoring a new workshop
for teenage pianists and key-
board players interested in
learning about the grandest
of keyboard instruments,
the pipe organ.

This presentation is the
final component of “Music
Around the County,” a new
series of music programs
featuring Salem County'’s
pipe organs.

“Over the past two months
the Music Around the Coun-
ty concerts have featured
first-rate artists and musie,”

sion. “but we also wanted to
offer a special program for
young musicians,”

Two well-respected musi-
cians and educators; Law-
rence DePasquale, Rowan
University, and Joseph
Krupa, organist at Salem’s
First Presbyterian Church,
will lead the workshop.
Krupa will be exploring
the mechanics and history
of the instrumentswhile
DePasquale will offer a mas-
ter class in performance.
Students will have oppor-
tunities to perform them-
selves and should bring
their music,

The workshop will take
place at Pittsgrove Preshy-

Photo special 0 Today's Sunbeam
Young and old alike will enjoy the 3rd Annual Friends Vil-

Festival set for this Saturday

From Staff Reports
tsnews@smewsco.com
WOODSTOWN
Friends Village will host
its 3rd Annual Friends
Village Festival & Antique
Carsgehnw this Saturday.

This family event is open
from 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. and
will be held on the grounds
of the 33-acre campus just
off U.S. Route 40 here.

In addition to great
music and unlimited ice
cream, this year’s event
features a pig roast with
all the trimmings provided
by Acton’s Pig Roastin’ and
Catering of Pennsville.
Musical entertainment
will include the Woodstown

High School Jazz Band and
local country artists Smith
& Western.

“We're very excited about
this year's event and we
want to thank our spon-
sors for their support,”
said Tom Lyons, CEO.
“Our sponsors to date
include Dr.’ Paul Bussey,
Family Practice of Salem
County in Woodstown; Dr.
John O'Brien of H & O
Dentistry in Mullica Hill;
Franklin Bank; the Town
and Country Century 21
Office of Woodstown, and
The Bank.”

General admission for
the event is $15 for adults,
$7 for children ages 6 to

12, and children 5 and
under are free of charge.
The price of admission
includes the pig roast,

all-you-can-eat ice cream, *

hot dogs, caricature draw-
ings, face painting, a moon
bounce, .dunk tank, and
the car show.

Antique and classic. car
entrants are invited fo pre-
register for $12. Registra-
tion the day of the event
is $15. Food tickets may
be purchased the day of
the event as well. Dash
plagues will be given to the
first 60 participants. Cars
will be judged in several
categories, including Best
in Show. The trophy pre-

sentation and a door prize
drawing for the car show
will be held at approxi-
mately 2:30 p.m.

Registration forms are
available by visiting the
Friends Village website at
www.friendsvillage.org.
For more information, con-
tact Daphne Hollingshead
at (856) 823-0786.

Proceeds from the event
benefit the Friends Vil-
lage Resident Benevolence
Fund.

Friends Village at Wood-
stown is a non-profit, con-
tinuing care retirement
community that offers
several living options to
seniors.

introduces keyboardists to the pipe organ

terian Church, Daretown

, Daretown. This loca-
tion is particularly appro-
priate in that the sanctuary
houses two pipe organs, an
1855 Jardine Tracker-action
organ and a 1955 Moeller.
The two instruments will
allow participants to learn
about and experience the
differences between the two
technologies — a rare oppor-
tunity.

“We see this program as
a natural extension of our
annual Teen Arts Festival,”
said Roxanna Hurst, presi-
dent of the Salem County
Arts Alliance. “We are
encouraging young people,
regardless of their level of
experience, to take advan-
tage of this fun new pro-
gram.”

Salem improvement forum tonight

From Staff Reports
tsnews@sfnewsco.com

SALEM — Residents are
being invited to a forum
tonight that will allow
them to voice their concerns
and suggest changes and
improvements that could

make the Center of Salem’

neighborhood better. '
The forum will be held at
John Fenwick School’s caf-

eteria, It will take place at 7
p-m. It applies to those resi-
dents who live between or
near Oak to Olive streets,
Salem Main Street offi-
cials said they plan on
reca‘rtijng m feedback and

The priorities of . this
plan will be directly related
to concerns expressed in

this and other community

forums.

It is Salem Main Street’s
intention to use this plan
for fundi lications for

to

its neighborhood plan. The

. plan is expected to foeus on

‘issues of housing, eeonomic

development, recreation and
other quality of life factors,

irnpﬂwiug'= the neighbor- .

hood, officials said.

Anyone with questions
about the forum should call
(856) 935-8800.

News conference on Leach death set

PENNS GROVE — A
news conference is sched-
uled to take place at Penn

Villamn Anostmante tadaw

of Moshowon Leach.’
Penn Village Apart-
ments is located at 200

Qnit ©

the deceased, and Mayor
John Washington.
In case of inclement

Participants need to pre-
register and advance pay-
ment of $20 is required. The
fee includes lunch of pizza
and beverages.

Registration is limited
to 20 students and piano
and organ instructors are
invited to accompany their
students for free. Register

Strawberries
Battiato

Farms

Retail/Wholesale
Quaker Neck Rd., Salem NJ

935-4060

H Also

Asparagus
for sale
Cannizzaro’s
Landscape Materials
* Mulch + Top So

* Stone
293 USRE. 130 Pedrickowr:
Cell: 600-381-5625

Office: 856-299-2610

n

by calling (856) 289-1198 or
(856) 935-7510 Ext. 8384,
This program is supported

in part by a grant from the
Preshyterian Association of
Musicians,

CITY OF SALEM
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
ENCOURAGES YOU TO
PREVENT STORM
WATER POLLUTION

i 1

UNABLE TO PAY YOUR BILLS?

WOULD BANKRUPTCY HELF?

CALL FOR A FREE PHONE OR
OFFICE CONSULTATION

TO REVIEW YOUR OPTIONS

GARY M. SALBER
935 - 1995

681 SOUTH BROADWAY, PENNSVILLE

gsalberlaw@comcast.net

www.salberlaw.com
A FULL SERVICE LAW FIRM
FAMILY LAW - MUNICIPAL COURT
SUPERIOR COURT - PER
SOCIAL SECURITY DISABILITY
28 YEARS IN SALEM COUNTY

a

2

782
e T -
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app'g.—zs N. Virginia Avenue

Penns Grove, NJ 08069

(856) 299-4224 + Far: (856) 2991868

Mon. to Wed. ~ 9am-5pm
Thurs. & Fri. ~9am-6pm
Sat. 9am - 5pm




Live in or near this neighborhood? COME AND BE HEARD!!

CENTER OF SALEM

NEIGHBORHOOD
(OAK TO OLIVE)

NEIGHBORHOOD
PLAN PUBLIC MEETING!

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 6t
/PM

Tri-County Community Services Building
14 New Market Street (across street from Salem City offices)

DON’T MISS YOUR CHANCE
TO COME AND GIVE INPUT ON AN
IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR YOUR
NEIGHBORHOOD!

Please come and be head Your views will be recorded and will count.

This is the second paurt of the neighbor hoodf um i MayatJ ohn Fenwi kS hool.
Any questions? Please do 't hesitate to contact us at 856-935-8800.
Salem Main Street Program
Fenwick Plaza, Suite 107, Salem, NJ 08079
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Center of Salem Neighborhood meeting to focus on revitalization efforts Page 1 of 2
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Everything Jersey

Center of Salem Neighborhood meeting to focus on revitalization
efforts

Published: Monday, October 04, 2010, 5:35 PM Updated: Monday, October 04, 2010, 5:44 PM

Today's Sunbeam

Special to Today's Sunbeam

Community members meet at a forum to discuss the future of their neighborhoods at the John Fenwick

School in Salem.

SALEM — A public meeting will be held for the Center of Salem Neighborhood, Oak to Olive streets, on
Wednesday at 7 p.m. at Tri-County Community Services Building, 14 New Market St., here.

The meeting will be a community-oriented presentation of a draft “Neighborhood Plan” to improve the

physical neighborhood and quality of life in this residential area.

Residents and members of the public will have an opportunity to review improvement goals and activities, as

well as express their views.
The Neighborhood Plan for the Oak to Olive “Center of Salem” neighborhood was developed based on
neighborhood personal and physical surveys, residential interviews and a neighborhood forum in May held in

the John Fenwick School cafeteria.

This neighborhood plan is being sponsored by the Salem Main Street program with funding from New Jersey

http://blog.nj.com/salem impact/print.htmlI?entry=/%®10/10/center of salem neighborhoo... 10/5/2010



Center of Salem Neighborhood meeting to focus on revitalization efforts Page 2 of 2

Department of Community Affairs.
The plan is being conducted by the planning company of Rhodeside and Harwell of Alexandria, Va.

With finalization of the neighborhood plan, Salem Main Street will be eligible to apply for New Jersey

Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit funding to directly assist the Center of Salem Neighborhood.
The NRTC program’s purpose is to foster the revitalization of New Jersey’s distressed neighborhoods.
The program offers business entities a 100 percent tax credit against various New Jersey state taxes.

Credits are provided to business entities that invest in the revitalization of low- and moderate-income

neighborhoods in eligible cities.

Sixty percent of the tax credit funds must be used for activities related to the development of housing and

economic development.

The remaining balance may be used for complementary activities such as the provision of assistance to small
businesses, removing barriers to self-sufficiency, and promoting the integration of mixed-income
neighborhoods.

Tri-County Community Services building is located directly across from the City of Salem’s municipal offices.
For further information on the meeting or the plan, contact Chris Davenport of Salem Main Street at (856)

935-8800.

© 2010 NJ.com. All rights reserved.

http://blog.nj.com/salem impact/print.htmlI?entry=/%910/10/center of salem neighborhoo... 10/5/2010
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Efforts being made to formulate plan to improve
downtown Salem neighborhoods

Published: Thursday, October 07, 2010, 7:33 PM
! Today's Sunbeam
ﬁ:‘ Follow
R

By Michael Williams, michaelwilliams@sjnewsco.com

SALEM —Salem Main Street, the organization working to revitalize
Salem City, hosted a public meeting Wednesday to present their draft of
the “Center of Salem Neighborhood Plan” and to gather public input on
the document.

Updated: Thursday, October 07, 2010, 7:38 PM

Share this story Story tools

Members of the public and city officials gathered at the Tri-County
Community Services Building on New Market Street to listen to a
presentation of the plan and to voice their input.

MAIN*STREET

A Frogram of Stand Up Tor Satem, inc
Salem Main Street is

“Our purpose seeking to improve Salem

Be the first of your

Like i ighborhoods.
(0] 0 friends to like this. Is to try to nelgnborhoods
make Salem
“share 0 Comments better,” said Chris Davenport, executive

director of the Salem Main Street
program and coordinator on the
Neighborhood Plan.

“We know there are a lot of good things about Salem and a lot of great people. But we also know
that it needs saving, and if we just leave it alone it’s not going to get any better.”

The plan focuses on an area of the city between Oak and Olive streets and between Broadway
and Grieves Parkway.

The public plan is a required process for the Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit Program,
which provides business entities a 100 percent tax credit for funds provided to non-profit entities
carrying out revitalization plans.

In Salem’s case, PSEG Nuclear would provide funding to Stand Up for Salem, the non-profit
organization which oversees Salem Main Street, to help meet the public’'s goals for creating a
better community.

The meeting was a follow-up to a neighborhood forum held in May, where members of the public
were asked to rate the quality of their community and identify goals for improving it.

Five specific goals were outlined in the plan based on public feedback: 1) Improve the condition of
housing, 2) Revitalize the local economy, 3) Improve the accessibility and organization of
community and recreation facilities, 4) Improve the quality of public spaces and infrastructure,
and 5) Improve social conditions.

Each of these goals are detailed in the plan with strategies for accomplishing them and predicted
outcomes.

Full drafts of the plan will be available for public review at the Salem Public Library and online at
www.salemcitynj.com/index2.html from now through Oct. 22.

After the two-week review period, public input will be used to revise and amend the plan before it
is sent to the state.

“Based on what | was hearing, goals No. 1, 3, and 4 seemed to be the greatest concern to the

public,” Davenport said after the meeting. “Those three seem to have risen to the top as the most
critical.”
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Despite the need for improvement, people seem to feel pretty safe in their community, he added. q Salem County Sheriff's Office
lists latest warrant arrests
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7:00 pm
23 Van Meter Terrace (Chris Davenport’'s House)

Attendees

Melvin Sorrell 303 New Market 935-4975
Barbara McCray 133 Grant Street 878-9290
Mary Milton 34 Walnut Street 935-2096
Christine Coleman 34 Walnut Street 935-2096
Cindy Edwards 11 Van Meter Terrace 935-4293
A’lieya Williams 443 Stratford Drive 935-4580
Angel Long 51 Walnut Street 878-1120

Brian Northrop
Randolph Gibson

CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD (Oak to Olive)

First Neighborhood Plan Advisory Meeting
Wednesday, April 21, 2010

300C 9" Street
East Broadway

609-202-6234
609-202-9545

David Willis 17 Chestnut Street 935-6415
Celeste Willis 17 Chestnut Street 935-6415
Karen Tuthill 3 Meadowside Lane 878-0558
Chris Davenport 23 Van Meter Terrace 279-2176

Agenda
1) Neighborhood Plan Explained

a. 3yearincrements
b. Engage Community and Community Input
2) NJINRTCP Application — deadline June 2010
a. Housing and Economic Development — 60%
b. Up to $1 million per year potential
3) Strategy for Completion
a. Survey
b. Neighborhood Forum
c. Advisory Meetings
4) Questions, Discussion
a. Discussed goal of another advisory meeting Thursday, April 29 at 7pm at Chris’s
house again, and then a community forum on Thursday, May 6 at a location TBD
b. Went around table and each shared a main concern and general feeling about
Salem:
e Karen —we need to get back to being neighbors; block captains would really help
e Chris — town’s overall economy needs help; my block in Salem has been great
for my family
e Melvin — Many concerns, crime, negative effects of urban renewal; kids — we
used to have “happy hour” 7-9pm on Friday night at different churches, kids
could go if they behaved. Condition of sidewalks big concern, could really use
funds to fix. Wouldn’t mind moving but probably won't
e Barbara — Kids: Idle hands are the Devil's Workshop . . .
e Mary - Would move if she could, too many kids just hanging out
e Christine - Kids: There used to be plenty to do in this town. With our housing
situation we are importing criminals
* Cindy - Plenty of concerns but didn’t want to be too negative, likes the idea of
becoming a homeowner here.
* Allieya — Kids: Nothing to do — improvement should start with kids
* Angel — Kids: We used to have Scope program and Police Athletic League
* Brian — We need jobs. Also need increase in responsibility — adult support of
kids
e Gibson — We used to have movies, Texas Wieners, happy hour, things at school,
cops knew the kids in town; Now cops don’'t walk and don’t know kids/kids don’t
know cops
e Celeste — No one is responsible. Traffic and trash on Chestnut are two big
concerns. Love the town and won't live in fear.
e Dave — Community Accountability big issue.
time.

Sees kids playing hooky all the
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CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD (Oak to Olive)
Second Neighborhood Plan Advisory Meeting
Thursday, April 29, 2010
7:00 - 8:30 pm
23 Van Meter Terrace (Chris Davenport’'s House)

Attendees

Barbara McCray 133 Grant Street 878-9290
Mary Milton 34 Walnut Street 935-2096
Christine Coleman 34 Walnut Street 935-2096
Cindy Edwards 11 Van Meter Terrace 935-4293
Angel Long 51 Walnut Street 878-1120
Brian Northrop 300C 9" Street 609-202-6234
David Willis 17 Chestnut Street 935-6415
Celeste Willis 17 Chestnut Street 935-6415
Chris Davenport 23 Van Meter Terrace 279-2176

Kathy Parsons
Al DeMaris

205 Sinnickson Street
14 Van Meter Terrace

Chris opened the meeting with general goals to discuss the upcoming forum, continue conversations from
the week prior, and provide an update on the residential survey. Two new attendees shared their
neighborhood concerns and praises:

e Al — Salem is his home, long time resident; many concerns but big one is neglect of property,
code of buildings and physical trash. Other big concern is noise at night - loud music blasting and
kids.

e Kathy — Noise is #1 — loud music and loud people; #2 is abandoned houses and seemingly
helplessness of the city to do anything about them. Her neighborhood has deteriorated
noticeably in just the past two months.

Chris provided an update on the preliminary forum plans, which is tentatively set for Wednesday, May 12,
2010 at the John Fenwick School cafeteria, at 7:00 pm; however the group questioned if that provided
enough time to get good turn-out. The group discussed an alternative date the following week, which
coincides with the Main Street Block Party and the opening of the Farmers Market, and would be
challenging, but not impossible. Flyers will be given to the group as soon as possible.

Brian updated the group on his progress administering the residential surveys. He mentioned that he and
his group completed approximately 40 surveys, although not all of them were conducted in the
neighborhood. He reported a response rate of 50% and noted that he has been more successful with
people he knows. The group suggested that wearing a traffic vest might help (Chris has these). Brian
also mentioned that people tend not to read the cover letter from Main Street. Brian is both excited by the
people who care, and puzzled by those who are not interested.

Following the survey update was a discussion of the group’s major concerns about the neighborhood,
which included kids/families and the condition of housing. Comments included:
* Brian - Would like to see multi-purpose building like a boys and girls club that could handle walk-
ins as long as they behaved.
* Angel - Would like the above plus an incentive program for status and privileges. Ideally would
like to see an open space/recreation park too.
e Barbara — Wants to see the kids work for something instead of wanting something for nothing.
e Cindy — Would like homeowner incentives including a reduction of taxes so she could afford to
keep home after buying.
e Celeste — Need to teach the kids who have kids how to be parents. Doesn'’t believe City Council
Cares at all. City needs to do something about slumlords.
e Brian — his generation and younger — has a lot of quitters, they get discouraged and don’t believe
a better life is possible. Girls try to get pregnant to “control” a guy and find some security.
e Christine — There is a cycle of dependency that needs breaking
* Al— Need a beautification program, clean up and fix up, decorate.
* Chris — seems to be a combined feeling of need for “honorable work ethic” instilled in youth and
actual need for clean-up. City lacks work opportunities — some sort of youth job corps seems like
it would be ideal.
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NRTC NEIGHBORHOOD QUALITY OF LIFE SURVEY: INSTRUCTIONS TO
INTERVIEWERS

Strategy for Selecting a Random Sample

1. Put the names of all of the streets in your sample on separate pieces of paper, fold
them, and put them in a box.

2. Decide how many streets each team of two persons will cover, and let them pick those
streets from the box of street names.

3. When the team arrives at a selected street, begin interviewing on the LEFT side of the
street for the first block, and the RIGHT side for the second block, and so on —
alternating with each block.

4. Face the side of the block that you will be starting to interview on. Go to the first house
on the left end of the street and knock on the door. From that point on, go to every
house on that street, and then begin on the left side of the next street, and so on.

5. Ifitis an apartment building, begin on the top floor, and go to EVERY OTHER apartment
door in the building on each floor.

Greeting
Hi, my name is , and | am with a group called Standing on a Solid

Foundation. We are working with the Stand Up for Salem Main Street program to understand

how people feel about the neighborhoods they live in. Here is a letter explaining what we are

doing.

| would appreciate it if you could spend a few minutes speaking with me about this

neighborhood. Thanks!
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22 April 2010

RE: NTRC NEIGHBORHOOD QUALITY OF LIFE SURVEY

Dear Salem Resident,

The Stand Up for Salem Main Street Program recently received a grant from the State of
New Jersey to develop a neighborhood improvement plan. As a first step in this effort,
we are trying to understand how people feel about their neighborhoods by conducting a
door-to-door opinion survey. At a later date, we will hold a community meeting to share
the findings of this survey, and to work with you to identify some of the steps that the
City might take to improve our neighborhoods.

Thank you for taking the time today to speak with our team member. Any information
that you can provide will be a great help to us. In the future, we will be sure to let you
know about any meetings that are planned to further discuss ways to improve your
neighborhood. We hope you will be able to stay involved as we work together to
improve the quality of life in the City of Salem.

Sincerely,
Stand Up For Salem

Chris Davenport
Director
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CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD QUALITY OF LIFE SURVEY

1. Ithinkitis good to ask how long they have been living at this address, and in Salem. OK
to ask age as well, but if they don’t want to answer, the interviewer might take a guess
after they leave the interview (but they should note that this is only a guess)

2. How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to live: excellent, good, fair or poor?
Why do you say that?

3. How would you rate Salem as a place to live: excellent, good, fair or poor? Why do you say this?

4. What do you feel are the best things about this neighborhood?

5. What do you think needs to be improved most in this neighborhood?

6. How safe do you feel in this neighborhood during the day and after dark?

7. How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to raise children: excellent, good, fair or poor?
What about the neighborhood leads you to say that?

8. Which of the following do you feel are problems in this neighborhood?
Vacant buildings

Condition of houses

Violent crime

Property crime (burglary, theft)

Number of rental properties

Recreation programs available

Cost of current recreation programs

@~ ooo0oTw

9. (Insertyour Q.7 here and ask the interviewer to hand over the form to the person being
interviewed to complete it)

10. What is the #1 thing you would change in your neighborhood?
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CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD QUALITY OF LIFE SURVEY

| think it is good to ask how long they have been living at this address, and in Salem. OK to ask
age as well, but if they don’t want to answer, the interviewer might take a guess after they leave
the interview (but they should note that this is only a guess)

How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to live: excellent, good, fair or poor?
Why do you say that?

(O) - Excellent
(7) - Good
(13) - Fair
(7) - Poor

How would you rate Salem as a place to live: excellent, good, fair or poor? Why do you say this?
(0) - Excellent

(1) - Good

(15) - Fair

(10) - Poor

What do you feel are the best things about this neighborhood?

Nothing (#1)

People and neighbors, including children and the elderly (#2)

Quiet (#3)

Local retail (#4)

Parking garage

Smaller classroom size provide more opportunities for teachers and students to interact one-
on-one

= Air

What do you think needs to be improved most in this neighborhood?

Everything (#1)

Appearance, including the condition of housing and the amount of trash (#2)
Sense of security and safety

The attitude and behavior of residents/people in the Neighborhood

The amount and types of programs for area children

The availability of jobs

Not much

How safe do you feel in this neighborhood:

During the day? After dark?

(0) - Very Unsafe (3) - Very Unsafe
(1) - Fairly Unsafe (1) - Fairly Unsafe
(13) - Safe (14) - safe

(9) - Fairly Safe (8) - Fairly Safe
(3) - Very Safe (0) - Very Safe

80



10.

How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to raise children: excellent, good, fair or poor?
What about the neighborhood leads you to say that?

(0) - Excellent

(2) - Good

(4) - Fair

(18) - Poor

Which of the following do you feel are problems in this neighborhood?

YES NO
a. Vacant buildings (18) @)
b. Condition of houses (29) (6)
c. Violent crime (24) Q)
d. Property crime (burglary, theft) (22) 3)
e. Number of rental properties (22) 4)
f.  Recreation programs available (20) (5)
g. Cost of current recreation programs (29) (6)

(Insert your Q.7 here and ask the interviewer to hand over the form to the person being
interviewed to complete it)

What is the #1 thing you would change in your neighborhood?
Overall appearance and condition of housing (#1)

The bad attitudes and behavior of people in the area (#2)
More community programs and activities for kids

More job opportunities

Increased police presence and decreased drug activity
More/improved sidewalks

Nothing
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Jul. 300 ZU10 JUHUAM No. 2701 K]
DRAFT RESIDENT SURVEY ~ SALEM CENTER NEIGHBORHOOD

1) How Long have you lived of this address_ In Salem ‘ Age

2) How do you feel living in this nelghborhood - please rate ecach
Excellent . Good Falr Poor __ Don't Know

Your Nelghborhood As a place to live 1 2 3 4 5
Salem as o place to live 1 2 3 4 5
Salem as a place to raise children 1 2 3 4 5

3) Please rate your nelghborhood in terms of the following

Excellent  Good Fai ... Poor .. Don't Know

Sense of Communily 1 2 3 4 5

Overall Appearance 1 2 3 4 §

Condilion of Housing 1 2 3 4 5

Shopping Opporuniiies ¥ 2 3 4 5

Recreational Opporunities ] 2 3 4 s

Employment Opportunities 1 2 3 4 5

Edvcational Oppartunities 1 2 3 4 5

Volunteer Opportunities i 2 3 4 §

Ease of Bus Trave! 1 2 3 4 5

4) Safely - Please rate how safe or unsafe you feel: :

VerySale  Fairly Sale af ety Unsat Don't Know

In your neighborhood during doy 3 2 3 4 5 é
In your nelghboshood after dark 1 2 3 4 5 &

5} In the last 12 moths, about how many times, if ever, have you ot other household members
participated in the following aclivities in Salem?

Never once orlwice 31010 Imes Meore than 10 limes

Used the Salern Libiay 1 2 o3 4

Used the J.B. Campbell Center i 2 3 4

Parlicipated in a recreation program 1 2 3 4

Used the Salem City Pool 1 2 3 4

Vislied a playground 1 2 3 4

Salem Main Street Block Pady 1 2 3 4

Salern Main Sireet Formers Morket 1 2 3 4

Aftended a Church Activity 1 2 3 4

6) To whai degree, if ot all, are the following a problem to you

Not g Problem _ Minos Probler Moderalg Problem __Major Problem Don't Know

Vacant Buildings 1 2 3 4 &
Condition of Houses 1 2 3 4 5
Violent Crime 1 2 3 4 3
Property Crime (Burglary, thett) 1 2 3 4 5
tock of Income 1 2 3 4 5
Number of Rental Propesties 1 2 3 4 5
Recreation Programs Avaliable i 2 3 4 $
Cost of Recreation Programs Available 1 2 3 4 5

7} How mwwch affect would the following possible improvemenis have on your quallty of life?

Ve Poslive Faly Posilive . ®Nolmpact  Folily Negolive  Very Negollve
Increase In Kids Activitles Available 3

1
Increose In Safety 1
Assistance for Homeowners 1
Asslstance for Employment/Jobs 1
Kew Lighting/Trash Cans/ Sireet Paving 1
1
1
|

Belter Parks/Playgrounds
Fhore Slores downtowin
A Central Town Square for Activitles

NMNNNNNDNN
PN - W - - N RN

L G W
R aw

8) What is the number one thing you would change in your neighborhood'?
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CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD
Community Forum: NRTC Grant Program

May 12, 2010 @ 7:00 PM
AGENDA

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS (Chris Davenport)
o Steering Committee

o Brad Harrington

o Gail Davis

(o] Consultant team

NRTC PROGRAM: BACKGROUND (Brad Harrington)
o What is the program?
o Questions?

PRELIMINARY “CENTER OF SALEM” BOUNDARIES AND ISSUES (Chris Davenport)
o Presentation of Neighborhood boundaries and adjustments as needed
o Community survey findings to date: a brief summary

CENTER OF SALEM ISSUES: COMMUNITY VIEWS
Please discuss the following at your tables:
1. How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to live — excellent, good,
fair or poor? Why do you say that?
2. What do you feel are the best things about this neighborhood?
What do you think needs to be improved most in this neighborhood?
4. If you were to leave Salem and return in 10 years, what would you hope to
see in this neighborhood upon your return?

REPORTING BACK
o Please select a “spokesperson” from your table to summarize the key points of
your group’s discussion

NEXT STEPS (Chris Davenport)

(o] On-going Steering Committee meetings
o Draft Initial strategies for neighborhood improvements
o Bring ideas back to the community for input
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May 12, 2010 Public Forum Results

1. How would you rate this neighborhood as a place to live — excellent, good, fair,
or poor? Why did you say that?

GROUP 1
Excellent — 0

Fair—9

Poor -2

Poor (Area #1)

Drug activity
Run-down/appearances

Trash lids hanging

No recreation

Rental properties

Outsiders destroying the property

Good (Area #2)

School is a positive presence
Homeowners

Police nearby

Quality of homes maintained well
Speeding cars and loud music
Unobserved laws

Curfew not being followed

Heavy partying

Fair (Area #3)

Loud music

Parties

Drugs

Speeding cars

Rental properties, (Oak St is a historic street — in the historic district)

Issue with sides streets going off of Oak St. — Carpenter, Thompson, and Hedge — hurt
house sales

Motorcycles

GROUP 2

Good, although the appearance could be better

Fairly safe (7 out of 10, 10 being very safe)

The neighborhood has been targeted as a redevelopment area in the past and was
upgraded 10-15 years ago (early 90s) — the improvements have held and most of the
homes are owner-occupied

50% of homes in the area are owned, which directly correlates to the tax base in the area
and the amount of money that goes towards schools and other amenities in Salem —
fewer homeowners, less tax money

City has tried to crack down on ‘slum lords’

Most landlords live outside of the area

“Mini Camden” - a lot of crime

Parents in the community need to be held accountable for where their kids are going and
what they are doing

There is a lack of structured activities for kids, and parental involvement

Playgrounds are not maintained well and parents do not feel safe allowing their children
to use them
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The rating of the neighborhood really depends on where you live (Church, Wesley,
Sinnickson and Eakin Streets comprise the worst area)

The area has continued to decline over the years

Renters want to make improvements, but can’t, due to lack of money/funding/incentives
People are leaving the neighborhoods because landlords are unresponsive to needs;
tried to strengthen landlord culpability laws (maintenance)

2. What do you feel are the best things about this neighborhood (blue areas)?

GROUP 1

Area #1: Good people, 2 businesses, 1 church, well maintained

Area #2: Many homeowners, good people/neighbors are great, quiet, very little damage
to schools, respect the property

Area #3: Good people, renters and homeowners, well-maintained and respected church,
very little damage, good pantry at church

GROUP 2

Schools are good for keeping kids active in a controlled environment

Pool is very attractive to area residents

The City’'s recreation center has programs, but they cost money and are not available to
all age groups

Enjoy walking down Oak Street and Greaves Parkway

Churches on Broadway have good activities (31 churches total in Salem City)

Homes along Thompson and Carpenter Streets were recently renovated about a decade
ago and have maintained their appearance fairly well

Citizens for Safe and Quiet Neighborhoods — working with churches and police officers to
share information on crime and target problem areas

Working with police officers has had a major impact on safety

Police is responsive when called, but the community needs to do their part to report crime

3. What do you thing needs to be improved most in this neighborhood (red
areas)?

GROUP 1

Area #1: Appearance, more community spirit, more police patrol on foot and bike, more
consistency, home maintenance/property assistance education, neighborhood captains
Area #2: Noise ordinance, property maintenance

Area #3: Child supervision, clean up trash, alleyway improvement

GROUP 2

Police patrol on foot and bike - become a face in the neighborhood

The community needs a “holding area” for youth who have committed crimes, until their
parents can come to pick them up, in order to allow police officers to continue working
instead of watching minors

Enforcement of curfew (could be enforced year-round instead of just holidays)

Peaople still don’t care, despite efforts of community

People are afraid to call cops and they should feel safe calling the police

Adults in the area use children as look-outs for cops

The police force and the community should be proactive instead of reactive by
consistently visiting area ‘hotspots’

Adults area corrupting children with drugs/alcohol and children with no where to go and
no one watching them fall victim

The current police force is small and in need of additional officers

Kids in the neighborhood need more structured activities
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Absentee landlords do not generally respond to the needs of renters, especially when
homes are failing — many renters would be interested in buying the homes they rent, if
they had money to make necessary improvements (roof leaks, etc.)

4. If you were to leave Salem and return in 10 years, what would you hope to see
in this neighborhood upon your return?

GROUP 1

Recreation center for all ages to educate children and give them a place to go, structure
businesses and more employment, increase tourism — a historical area, better gateways
— more vibrancy in the town

We need to support our own community and improve more civic spirit. Go to community
activities, school events eve if no children are there.

Cleaner community, no littering, lower taxes, property better maintained — no vacant
properties

Positive Impact Movement — President Karen Roots (Neighborhood Watch)

Allow community members to voice their opinions at council meetings

Kids need summer activities

GROUP 2

An open and well-use community pool

Fresh food market

Kids in organized activities

Fewer boarded-up houses

Good landscaping, better trees

A fountain

Fewer steel structures in the downtown and more office buildings to increase the
employment base

Prefer the Colonial architecture and would like to build on “selling” the history of Salem
Transit system to places to and from Salem

An ‘educational’ community garden with a focus on children

A visible Boys and Girls Club or Big Brothers/Sisters program that children will easily see
and can easily access

A movie theater (downtown used to have 2 theaters)

YMCA

WAWA

A Police Athletic League the gets the police involved with children

An elementary school that comprises kindergarten through 5th grade, and a separate
middle school that comprises grades 6-8

Homeowners and renters receiving funds for making improvements (Neighborhood
Preservation Plan)

Different people

Affordable taxes and homes (currently, property values decline and taxes increase)

More homeownership

Property tax incentives for homeowners

Library improvements (historic structure)

Youth technology resources and training programs that prepare kids for
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CENTER OF SALEM (OAK TO OLIVE) NEIGHBORHOOD
REVITALIZATION PLAN

PUBLIC MEETING

Wednesday, October 6, 2010
7:00 PM

AGENDA

Welcome and Introductions

Brief Project Background

Presentation of Plan: Key Recommendations

Next Steps

Discussion
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CENTER OF SALEM (OAK TO OLIVE) NEIGHBORHOOD
REVITALIZATION PLAN

PUBLIC MEETING
Wednesday, October 6, 2010
7:00 PM
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CENTER OF SALEM (OAK TO OLIVE) NEIGHBORHOOD
REVITALIZATION PLAN

PUBLIC MEETING
Wednesday, October 6, 2010
7:00 PM
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Draft Center of Salem (Oak to Olive) Neighborhood Revitalization Plan

COMMENT FORM
October 2010

Optional Information

Commenter

Contact Information

Comment

When finished, please fold the comment form in half and drop into the Comment Box.
Thank you for your contribution!!!!

100



October 6, 2010 Public Meeting Comments

Would like to know more about what specifically the NRTC program, and other state
programs, can provide to the community

Would like to have an appointed City or Neighborhood liaison to work directly with
different State agencies to find potential grants and alternative funding sources for
improving the Neighborhood

Would like the boundary to be extended to include both the east and west sides of Olive
Street, to establish a consistent and complete revitalization effort

Would like the plan to address several strategies for holding absentee landlords
accountable for their properties

Would like to see grant money used to provide residents who are unable to afford a loan,
with the funds necessary to purchase a home

Provided that the projects are implemented successfully, would like to see the
Neighborhood boundary expand to impact a larger area of Salem

Would like to see home improvement funds go to landlords who are most in need and
most reliable

Would like the plan to include strategies for creating a public football field in the area
south of the Campbell Center and north of Grieves Parkway

Would like the plan to address funding sources that help landlords and homeowners
make housing more energy efficient

Would like to see more creative strategies than what is provided

Would like to see the majority of housing funds go to homeowners in need, especially
those who wish to improve historic homes
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WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT TO DEVELOP A
NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN
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142 West Broadway
P.O. Box 453
Salem, NJ 08079 -
856-935-8800

July 30, 2010

City of Salem

17 New Market Street
Salem, NJ 08079
Attn: Tom Smith, City Administrator, Salem City Mayor
Re: Center of Salem Neighborhood Revitalization Tax Credit Plan

Dear Mr. Smﬁh, Mayor and Council:

As you are kaely aware, Stand Up For Salem has commenced. work on the
deve!opmen’r of a.-neighborhood plan for the Center of Salem neighborhood
(Oak to Olive Streets, Broadway to Grieves Parkway). Funding for this plan
was provided by New Jersey DCA. | have been working directly on this plan
this year (with help from our planners) with volunteer neighborhood surveyors,
resident advisory meetings and a first community forum in May.

This neighborhood plan will fulfill the requirements of the New Jersey DCA
Neighborhood Tax Credit  (*NRTC”) Program. The mission of the NRTC
Program is to foster the revitalization of low and moderate-income
neighborhoods through comprehensive strategies driven by residents and
other public and private stakeholders within the neighborhood.

City and community input has and will be solicited during all stages of the

planning process and a draft plan is expected to be available for the City's
final review in September, 2010.

Once the comprehensive neighborhood plan is complete, Stand Up For
Salem will be eligible to apply for up to $1 million annually through the NRTC
program to fund projects identified in the plan. Possible projects include
affordable home ownership housing incentives and development and mixed
use economic revitalization projects.

Stand Up For Salem is working with our planners Rhodeside & Harwell, a
professional  community planning. firm subconiracted by Quinn Evans
Architects of Washington D.C. — our Main Street Master Plan developers. We
will also continue to work closely with neighborhood residents,. our
neighborhood Advisory Committee and the City of Salem to ensure ongoing
community contact, input and coordination.

We look forward fo working with the City of Salem during this planning
process and will keep you advised of our progress in this much needed effort.
Please confact me at 935-8800 if you have any questions at all.

Sincerely,

C)ﬂm Q M"’-ﬂv—?“"\_/ >

i

Chris Davenport
Executive Director
S’rand Up For So!em/SQlem Main Street Progrom
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LETTERS OF SUPPORT
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L5

John B. Campbell
Family & Fitness Center of Salem Count
The Children’s Space Child Care Center

118 Walnut Street » Salem, NJ 08079 ¢ Fax: (856) 935-1030 enlslototais
(856) 9352788

(856) 9357780

November 3, 2010

New Jersey Department of Community Affairs,

The Salem Community Recreation Center, Inc. is the leading recreation provider for
Salem City. We fully support Stand Up For Salem; Salem Main Street's Neighborhood
Plan that would benefit Salem City and its residents. We believe so strongly in the plan
that has been presented by Stand Up For Salem; Salem Main Street we are willing to be
included as a partner organization to make this plan a reality.

We are willing to help Stand Up For Salem; Salem Main Street through the support of
our 26 staff personnel and any future program facilitators. We hope to collaborate
through the use of our eight classes and future classes and activities for adults and youth.
We welcome the opportunity to contract on behalf of Stand Up for Salem; Salem Main
Street to facilitate adult and youth programming for the City of Salem.

The mission for the past 20 years of Salem Community Recreation Center, Inc. has been
to provide Salem County residence an affordable, clean, safe and healthy facility for
fitness training, senior health & wellness, recreation, educational workshops, and
childcare.

In our opinion Stand Up For Salem; Salem Main Street has created a plan that addresses
the same mission we as an organization have been pursuing for the past 20 years. We
look forward to partnering with Stand Up For Salem; Salem Main Street and allowing
them to utilize all of our resources to ensure their Neighborhood Plan and our mission is
accomplished.

Sincerely, V\

ba.

Az

Charles Washington, Jr:
Executive Director

Fitness ¢ Recreation ¢ Childcare
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community Tri-County Community Action Partnership

|

PARTNERSHIP. . ’ 110 Cohansey Street, Bridgeton, New Jersey 08302
AMERICA'S POVERTY FIGHTING NETWORK (856) 451-6330  (856) 455-7288 fax © www.tricountycaa.org

Albert B. Kelly
President/CEQ

John Washington

Chairman

Carol J. Musso November 8, 2010

Vice Chairman

). Curtis Edwards
Secretary
Darlene Barber Chris Davenport, Executive Director

Treasurer Salem Main Street Association
Salem, NJ 08079

Dear Mr. Davenport:

On behalf of Tri-County Community Action Agency, we are pleased to offer
support for and an offer to partner with the Salem Main Street Association and
Stand Up For Salem.

As Tri-County has done in the past, we will work with Stand Up For Salem to make
the agency’s full range of social services available to Salem residents. In particular,
Tri-County will work with Stand Up For Salem by providing home ownership
counseling services.

We hope that these agency services, coupled with increased capacity of Stand Up For
Salem will enable a great program to have an even greater impact on the community.
Best wishes for continued success.

Sincerely,
o
\ﬁ%&\ ) s

Ed

Albert B. Kelly
President/CEQ

Cumberland County ¢ Gloucester County e Salem County
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EVIDENCE OF PuBLIC REVIEW
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Check out Salem Main Street on Facebook

For informal interaction with us - more stories, photos
facebook » photos,

videos, comments & links. Sign up as a fan while you're
there for automatic updates and event announcements.

FALL 2010

YULETIDE FESTIVAL IN SALEM IS COMING
CHECKOUT THE YULETIDE FACEBOOK PAGE!!!

DRAFT NEIGHBORHOOD PLAN FOR CENTER OF SALEM NEIGHBORHOOD
NOW AVAILABLE ONLINE - Check it out in our publications page and send
us your comments/questions!

We held a public review session with our planners on Wednesday, October 6,
2010 at 7pm at Tri-County Community Services Building to Review Draft
Neighborhood Plan for this "Oak to Olive" neighborhood. About 50 attended
(during the Phillies playoff game even!) This plan is for the purpose of
obtaining funds to directly help this neighborhood and is sponsored by the

Salem Main Street Program. Any questions please contact our office at 856-
935-8800.

10TH ANNUAL SALEM MAIN STREET GOSPEL FEST SATURDAY OCTOBER 9TH
WAS AWESOME!! THANK YOU TO ALL OF OUR PARTICIPANTS AND
VOLUNTEERS!!! CHECK THE PICS ON FACEBOOK

THANK YOU TO OUR SPONSORS, ATTENDEES AND DONORS AT OUR
ANNUAL STAND UP FOR SALEM DINNER FUNDRAISER WEDNESDAY,
OCTOBER 13, 2010!!

Annual Dinner Sponsored by PSEG and John Bibeau and Ron Ruckenstein
Associates

PLATINUM SPONSOR:

South Jersey Industries

GOLD SPONSORS:
Franklin Savings Bank
Puma, Telsey and Rhea

Salem City Cafe
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Publications

New - October 2010 - Center of Salem Neighborhood Draft Revitalization
Plan. This is the draft neighborhood plan for the "Oak to Olive" Street area
of Salem City. To make comment or any questions contact
Chris@salemcitynj.com

Draft NRTC Plan FOR PUBLIC REVIEW_101008.pdf Click here to download
Center of Salem Draft Neighborhood Plan

New February 2010 - City of Salem Open Space Recreation Plan - further
questions contact Carol Wright at City of Salem (856) 935-5510

Click here to download Open Space Recreation Plan

The Main Street Revitalization Master Plan - adopted in 2004 as the City of
Salem Main Street Redevelopment Plan. This plan is a comprehensive
design template for accomodating development opportunities in the center
of Salem. The active plan has directly led to the completed Stand Up For
Salem owned projects - Salem Senior Village and Finlaw Office Building and
Parking Garage, as well as the new Hires Avenue and future town square.

Click here to download Master Plan

Click here to download Transportation Report

JGSC Retail Consulting conducted a community insites retail survey and
comprehensive report on downtown Salem retail opportunities and
challenges in 2008. This report guides our business recruiting and volunteer
action committee priorities for the near future.

Click here to download 2008 JGSC retail report "Bringing Back Business to
Salem"

Click here to download 2009 JGSC Salem Strategies Part Two

Click here to download City of Salem Recycling Schedule updated 2009

Default Footer Text

Friday, October 8, 2010, 11:35 PM
TOP.+
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Draft Center of Salem (Oak to Olive) Neighborhood Revitalization Plan

COMMENT FORM
October 2010

Optional Information

Commenter

Contact Information

Comment

When finished, please fold the comment form in half and drop into the Comment Box.
Thank you for your contribution!!!!
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Draft Center of Salem (Oak to Olive) Neighborhood Revitalization Plan

COMMENT FORM
October 2010

Comiment .
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When finished, please fold the comment form in half and drop into the Comment Box.
Thank you for your contribution!!!!
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Draft Center of Salem (Oak to Olive) Neighborhood Revitalization Plan

COMMENT FORM
October 2010
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When finished, please fold the comment form in half and drop into the Comment Box.
Thank you for your contribution!!!!
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Draft Center of Salem (Oak to Olive) Neighborhood Revitalization Plan

COMMENT FORM
October 2010

Comment
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When finished, please fold the comment form in half and dvop into the Comment Box.
Thank you for your contribution!!!!
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Emily Brodhag

From: Chris Davenport [chris@salemcitynj.com]
Sent: Tuesday, November 09, 2010 9:59 AM
To: Emily Brodhag

Subject: WOW! Thanks!

Attachments: --static--intheclouds_b.jpg

Emily — this is part one of Claudia Fuse’s comments

Chris

From: Claudia Fuse [mailto:claudi56@yahoo.com]
Sent: Thursday, October 21, 2010 5:08 AM

To: Chris@salemcitynj.com

Cc: Claudia Fuse; Bill Fuse

Subject: WOW! Thanks!

Dear Chris,

THANKS SO MUCH for your continued hope,vision hard work & perseverence for our
city!

And, thank you for modeling for us a humble servant spirit

in your personal efforts to root out weeds and clean up !

Thanks also for bringing that wonderful woman and your terrific kids to Salem!

| was very impressed by all the positive energy and teamwork expressed through

the community mtgs, though | haven't been attending. As I've been thinking, praying
and discussing these issues over the past week, several questions have surfaced that
may

or may not be relevant.

The 54-page report is comprehensive, enlightening and inspiring, &

unfortunately, difficult for busy people to read (like my husband). Could someone
develop a 2-page summary with a brief response sheet? Could this be published in
the Sunbeam with another invitation to access & read the report? Or made available
at your office (which | still need to find- is there a "forwarding address on your former
location, or am | the only one who had that problem?) | would like to encourage other
landlords we know to read this...

Has Rev. Fields been able to engage the Ministerium in the process of Neighborhood
revitalization? What vital resources are being/can be tapped through the local body
of Christ?

| refuse to get preachy, but 2 Chron. 7:14 comes to mind- "If My people, who are
called by My Name, will humble themselves and pray, and seek My face, and turn
from their wicked ways, then will | hear from heaven, forgive their sin and HEAL
THEIR LAND (Town?)"

Is this real or not?If we believe this promise, how do we access this? Do we want to?
As we earnestly seek the Lord, could He direct & empower our work to much greater
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effectiveness?

Who do you know who has a heart for prayer, engaging others in prayer, and
including specific intercession for our town leaders (such as Main St.!) and town
issues?

A few earnest faces come to mind...

About 8 yrs. ago. your wife gave me a Mag. article about a united prayer movement in
a British city that was catalyzed by a Christian police officer concerned w. juvenile
crime, & engaged the church in prayer & action for the good of the community. The
results were dramatic. There are testimonies of many such efforts throughout our
nation, world, & history. | am praying that the Lord would raise up a team of prayer
warriors throughout our community that will earnestly seek the face of God for our
city. | believe this is God's heart.

Do you believe that God ever speaks directly to you? Soon after our marriage (May
1991) and move to Salem, a mandate was strangely impressed on my heart as |
drove through Salem,

"Pray for the peace of the city to which you were carried away captive.." | thought it
was a scripture, which | found later that week while preparing our Sunday School
lesson:

"And seek the peace of the city where | have caused you to be carried away captive,
and pray to the Lord for it; for in its peace you will have peace(SHALOM!)" -Jeremiah
29:7.

| need to be more faithful to this call.

When Bill gets back next wk. from his FL Keys cycle trip ( w. Dave Harris), would it be
poss. to meet for lunch to discuss any of the above- even just a quick one at
Vicente's?

SHALOM!! Claudia
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Public Feedback on Draft Neighborhood Plan

Who's going to pay?

Need something for the retention of current homeowners.

Enforce existing codes on noise. Signs are up stating $300 fine.

Do sobriety checkpoints to catch drug dealers.

Do not assist landlords — make them bring properties up to code.

Residents need transportation to jobs.

Like the escrow idea for improvements to rental properties.

Bicycles were not mentioned, although they serve as transportation for a lot of adults and
children in Salem.

Our blocks seem to be won or lost block-by-block. Could there be activities that focus on
working incrementally?

One impediment to progress is liens placed on properties by outside companies.

Explore turning this plan into a redevelopment plan.

Needs assessment for retail has been done already.

“Though our problems are not unique, it would have been nice to see some specifics
toward Salem rather than generalities”

Our sidewalks are terrible, didn’t see anything on that.

Need specific homeownership incentives to even the equation and need to focus street
by street, perhaps more incentives for properties next to those with owner occupants.
Also need the right person working with first time homeowners, screening and
counseling.

We have available to us county prison workers and residents on welfare who need to
complete community service hours. If | had a supervisor who could supervise, we could
have a daily crew doing clean-ups and fix-ups. | would also like to have a youth job
corps to complete improvement projects.

Weed and Seed program needs to be investigated.

Specific funds for improvements could go a long way, maybe by reimbursement (i.e., new
sidewalks, paint and gutters).

Need to make sure that Boys and Girls Club and the Campbell Center are “walk-in"
welcome, as originally intended.
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Page 1 of 1

Emily Brodhag

From: Chris Davenport [standupforsalem@verizon.net]
Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 1:19 PM

To: Emily Brodhag

Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Attachments: NRTC Draft Plan_100830 (3).pdf

Emily - FYI

From: Delmar Sr, Joseph [mailto:Joseph.DelmarSr@pseg.com]
Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2010 8:07 AM

To: J Waddy; Chris Davenport

Cc: Tuosto, Michael R.

Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Jim & Chris

Mike forwarded the plan over to me. It looks good. One issue: the company should be referred to as PSEG
Nuclear and not PSE&G. There are several references in the document.

Joe

From: Jim Waddington [mailto:waddingtonsalem@hotmail.com]
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 3:59 PM

To: Tuosto, Michael R.

Cc: Chris Davenport

Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Mike,
I am forwarding a draft copy of the NRTC plan. Public hearing is scheduled for Wed. Oct. 6th.
Perhaps we can schedule something before the hearing?

Jim Waddington

From: standupforsalem@verizon.net

To: bsumiel@verizon.net; tomsmith-salem@comcast.net; waddingtonsalem@hotmail.com; rld288@verizon.net
Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Date: Mon, 20 Sep 2010 14:52:37 -0400

Ok trying to send this — if you print remember its 64 pages

If you haven't looked at this — its pretty much a kitchen sink of solutions. Once the plan is approved that's when
we can try for funding for projects.

Final version would incorporate input from neighborhood forum October 6

Chris
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Emily Brodhag

From: Emily Brodhag

Sent: Wednesday, October 20, 2010 12:10 PM

To: Emily Brodhag

Subject: FW: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

From: Chris Davenport [mailto:standupforsalem@verizon.net]
Sent: Tuesday, October 19, 2010 2:14 PM

To: Emily Brodhag

Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Hi Emily —
| physically took the plan to Tom and others about 3 weeks earlier —

Chris

From: Tom Smith [mailto:tomsmith-salem@comcast.net]
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 3:01 PM

To: 'Chris Davenport'

Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

thanks pal!!

Torm Smith

Clerk / Administrator
City of Salem

17 New Market Street
Salem NJ 08079
(856) 935-0373

From: Chris Davenport [mailto:standupforsalem@verizon.net]
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2010 2:53 PM

To: 'Bill Sumiel'; 'Tom Smith'; 'Jim Waddington'; 'Robert Davis'
Subject: draft neighborhood plan center of Salem

Ok trying to send this — if you print remember its 64 pages

Page 1 of 2

If you haven't looked at this — its pretty much a kitchen sink of solutions. Once the plan is approved that's when

we can try for funding for projects.

Final version would incorporate input from neighborhood forum October 6

Chris

Information from ESET NOD32 Antivirus, version of virus signature database 5464

(20100920)
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The message was checked by ESET NOD32 Antivirus.

http://www.eset.com

Information from ESET NOD32 Antivirus, version of virus signature database 5464
(20100920)

The message was checked by ESET NOD32 Antivirus.

http://www.eset.com
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STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.
AUDITED FINANICAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2008 and 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TovThe Board of Directors of
Stand Up For Salem, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Stand Up For Salem, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of activities and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Stand Up For Salem, Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

BOWMAN & COMPANY LLP
Certified Public Accountants
& Consultants

Woodbury, New Jersey
September 22, 2010
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Exhibit A

ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted (Note 9)
Grant Receivable
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Debt Issuance Costs
Less Accumulated Amortization
Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs
Property and Equipment:
Land, Building and Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Line of Credit Payable

Accrued Interest Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:

Government Revenue Bonds Payable

Premium on Government Revenue Bonds Payable

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Temporarily Restricted
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2008

3 159,254.40

2007

$ 239,241.31

3,287,733.88 15,799,724.98
3,446,988.28 16,038,966.29
19,022.50 -
3,466,010.78 16,038,966.29
1,071,093.15 1,071,093.15
(51,827.09) (17,275.70)
1,019,266.06 1,053,817.45
16,756,266.44 3,957,260.53
(2,806.79) (2,230.14)
16,753,459.65 3,955,030.39

$ 21,238,736.49

$ 21,047,814.13

$ 62,685.57 $ 80,842.49
87,257.84 33,689.30
379,179.00 -
529,122.41 114,531.79
19,500,000.00 19,500,000.00
982,846.75 982,846.75
20,482,846.75 20,482,846.75

21,011,969.16 20,597,378.54
512,393.63 295,766.09
(285,626.30) 154,669.50
226,767.33 450,435.59

$ 21,238,736.49

$ 21,047,814.13

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are aftintegral part of this statement.



80485 Exhibit B
For the Years Ende
2008 2007
Unrestricted Net Assets
Support
Contributions 86,511.37 86,580.00
City of Salem 40,000.00 40,000.00
Fundraising Events 35,442.00 34,012.00
Revenue
Programs ; 29,485.00 21,160.96
Program Management Fees - 160,000.00
Miscellaneous 10,983.03 4,704.01
Interest Income 314.51 373.79
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment - (1,185.77)
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 42,718.87 30,555.01
Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue 245,454.78 376,200.00
Expenses
Support Services
Operating 187,055.01 206,861.70
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs 34,551.39 17,275.70
Interest Expense 379,179.00 -
600,785.40 224,137.40
Program Services 73,686.43 106,154.75
Fundraising 11,278.75 9,208.00
Total Expenses 685,750.58 339,500.15
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets (440,295.80) 36,699.85
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Revenue
State Grant Funds 19,022.50 -
Programs 38,934.87 9,275.00
Revenue - Interest Income 105.04 135.94
Revenue - Interest Income Trustee Account 201,284.00 277,406.84
Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Restrictions Satisfied by Program Payments (42,718.87) (30,555.01)
Increase in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 216,627.54 256,262.77
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (223,668.26) 292,962.62
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 450,435.59 157,472.97
Net Assets at End of Year $ 226,767.33 $ 450,435.59

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements arg an integral part of this statement.
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Al f o shFio z
For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
2007
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (223,668.26) 292,962.62
Adjustment to Reconcile Changes in Net Assets
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 576.66
Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs 17,275.70
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment 1,185.77
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Grant Receivable (19,022.50) -
Prepaid Expenses 748.20
Due from Landlord 74.60
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (18,156.92) 30,164.31
Accrued Interest on Government Revenue Bonds Payable 379,179.00 -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 153,459.37 342,987.86
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of Equipment (472.74)
Acquisition of Property (101,043.33) -
Proceeds from Property Sales 32,814.23

Construction-In-Progress - Improvement/Renovations to Building
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Line of Credit Payable
Debt Issuance Costs
Government Revenue Bonds Payable
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure Information:
Cash Flow:
Interest Paid

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements age an integral part of this statement.
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(12,697,962.59)

(3,189,144.01)

(12,799,005.92)

(3,156,802.52)

(724,390.96)
(268,290.98)
19,680,044.58

18,687,362.64

(12,591,978.01)

16,038,966.29

15,873,547.98

165,418.31

3,446,988.28

16,038,966.29

21,000.25
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Nature of Activities - Stand Up for Salem, Inc., located in the City of Salem in the
County of Salem, New Jersey is a nonprofit organization incorporated on July 19, 1988 for the purpose
of preserving, revitalizing and rehabilitating the buildings, land, homes and other articles that may
relate to the history and architecture of the City of Salem and surrounding areas, to promote, induce,
assure and procure the economic revitalization of the City and to foster low-income housing.

Basis of Presentation — Financial Statement presentation follows the recommendations of relevant
accounting standards which requires the Organization to report information regarding its financial
position according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Organization is required to present a
Statement of Cash Flows.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned.
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual
results could vary from the estimates that were used.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization
considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months orless to be
cash equivalents.

Grants and Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management
expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Based on management’s assessment of the
credit history with clients having outstanding balances and current relationships with them, it has
concluded that realization losses on balances outstanding at year-end will be immaterial if any. Grants
receivable consists primarily of monies due at December 31, 2008 as a result of participation in a state
program.

Property and Equipment - Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of
property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair market value. Such
donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset
to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of
cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions.
Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the
Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to
unrestricted net assets at that time.

Major additions and betterments in excess of $500.00 are charged to land improvements, building
improvements and equipment while replacements, maintenance and repairs, which do not improve or
extend the life of the respective assets are expensed currently.

When retired or otherwise disposed of, the related carrying value and accumulated depreciation are

removed from the respective accounts and the net difference, less any amount realized form
disposition, is charged or credited to income.

139



80485

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (Cont’d) — Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method,
based upon the estimated useful life of the asset

Contributions — In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 116,
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, contributions received are recorded as
unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the existence or
nature of any donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same year
in which the contributions are received are classified as unrestricted contributions.

Tax Exempt Status - The organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c) (3)
of the Internal Revenue Code as a religious organization and accordingly does not record a provision
for income taxes on its earnings. The organization is eligible to receive a charitable contribution
deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and is classified as an organization other than a private
foundation under Section 509(a)(2).

Donated Services - The Organization receives certain administrative services from contributing
businesses at no cost and the Board of Directors performs their duties at no charge to the
Organization. The value of these contributions is not reasonably determinable; therefore, they are not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements. In addition, individuals volunteer their time and
perform a variety of tasks that assist the Organization but these services do not meet the criteria for
recognition as contributed services under SFAS No. 116.

Promises to Give - Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. The contribution is recorded only when and if the
Organization invoices the donor for the promised amount. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in
which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the
restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets.

Changes in Accounting Standards — In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair
Value Measurements, which provides guidance on how to measure assets and liabilities recorded at
fair value. SFAS 157 does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances, but does require
additional disclosure in annual and quarterly reports. The organization adopted SFAS 157 and its
related amendments for financial assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2008 see note 6. The
organization has evaluated the non-financial assets and liabilities portion of the standard and expects it
will have no significant impact on its financial condition or results or operations.

CONCENTATION OF CREDIT RISK

Custodial Credit Risk — At December 31, 2008 the Organization had $18,985.92 in cash balances in
financial institutions that exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limit. At
December 31, 2007 the Organization had $108,691.20 in cash balances in financial institutions that
exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limit.
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e Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

CONCENTATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Custodial Credit Risk (Cont’d) - In addition, the Organization had money market funds with Fulton
Financial Advisors N.A. These funds are not insured by the FDIC. At December 31, 2008 and 2007
the balances in these funds totaled $3,287,733.88 and $15,799,724.98 respectively.

The organization has never experienced any losses in these accounts.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Organization receives a substantial portion of its unrestricted revenues from the City of Salem and
local businesses. Support of $40,000.00 from the City of Salem and $60,000.00 from one business
represents approximately 16.30% and 24.40% of total unrestricted revenues, respectively for the year
ended December 31, 2008. Support of $40,000.00 from the City of Salem and $60,000.00 from one
business represents approximately 11.00% and 16.50% of total unrestricted revenues, respectively for
the year ended December 31, 2007. A reduction in the level of support, if such were to occur, may
have an effect on the Organization’s programs and acfivities.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

2008 2007
Construction-in-Progress $ 16,650,650.95 $ 3,952,688.36
Property Held for Sale 101,043.33 -
Equipment 457217 4,572.17
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,806.80) (2,230.14)
Net Book Value $ 16,753,459.65 $ 3,955,030.39

Depreciation expense was $576.66 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Construction-In-Progress consists of the acquisition, design, and construction of the “Finlaw Building”
project which was completed in June 2009.

Property Held for Sale consists of costs associated with the “Nelson House” project.

LINE OF CREDIT PAYABLE

The Organization has a $100,000.00 line of credit that carries an interest rate of 3.50%. The line of
credit is secured by a guaranty from the City of Salem. Borrowed amounts outstanding were
$87,257.84 and $33,689.30 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES
The policy of the Organization does not permit employees to accrue either vacation or sick days.
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nancial Statements (Continued)

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following purposes:
2008 2007

Town Square Project $ 4,551.99 $  4,446.95
" Children Aid 1,508.61 48.74
uletide Program 8,314.93 12,466.06

Community Insights Program - 1,397.50
Pederson Park 20,000.00 -
Master Plan 10,000.00 -
Finlaw Project 468,018.10 277,406.84

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 512,393.63 $ 295,766.09

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

The Organization holds an annual dinner fundraiser to help fund various program costs. The following
is a summary of fundraising activities:

2008 2007
Revenue $ 35,442.00 $ 34,012.00
Direct Expenses 11,278.75 9,208.00

Net Revenue over Expenses $ 24,163.25 $ 24,804.00

GOVERNMENT REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

On July 11, 2007, the Salem County Improvement Authority (“Authority”) issued $19,500,000 in
revenue bonds to provide a loan to Stand Up For Salem, Inc. for the purpose of acquisition, design,
and construction of a project located at 195 East Broadway, commonly referred to as the Finlaw
Building and other nearby properties in the City of Salem. The project consists of property
development, improvement, and construction of a five story office building in the approximate size of
50,000 square feet and an adjacent parking facility. The bonds are secured by a loan agreement
dated July 1, 2007 between the Authority and Stand Up For Salem, Inc., a promissory note dated

10
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Einancial Statements (Continued)

Note 9: GOVERNMENT REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

July 1, 2007 from Stand Up For Salem, Inc. to the Authority in the amount of $19,500,000, and a
mortgage and security agreement dated July 1, 2007 from Stand Up For Salem, Inc. to the Authority.
The City of Salem has guaranteed the payment, when due, of principal and interest on the bonds.
Also on July 1, 2007 Stand Up For Salem, Inc. executed an assignment of rents, leases and parking
revenues to Fulton Financial Advisors, N.A., the trustee of these bond funds, as additional security for
the payment of the principal and interest on the bonds. Leases for office space and parking have
been executed with various state agencies and other entities.

Principal and interest due on the government revenue bonds payable outstanding is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2009 None $ 1,011,143.76 $ 1,011,143.76
2010 $ 55,000.00 1,011,143.76 1,066,143.76
2011 55,000.00 1,008,943.76 1,063,943.76
2012 55,000.00 1,006,743.76 1,061,743.76
2013 115,000.00 1,004,543.76 1,119,543.76
2014-2018 775,000.00 4,938,918.80 5,713,918.80
2019-2023 970,000.00 4,758,811.30 5,728,811.30
2024-2028 2,410,000.00 4,432,937.52 6,842,937.52
2029-2033 6,630,000.00 3,292,012.50 9,922,012.50
2034-2038 8,435,000.00 1,370,775.00 9,805,775.00
$ 19,500,000.00 $ 23,835,973.92 $ 43,335,973.92

Adjustments:

Premium on Bonds 982,846.75 982,846.75

$ 20,482,846.75 $ 23,835,973.92 $ 44,318,820.67

The combination of serial and term bonds are to be paid down annually with the final maturity due
in the year 2038. Interest rates on such bonds range from 4.00% to 5.375%. Interest paid on
February 15, 2008 and August 15, 2008 which totaled $1,084,170.80 was capitalized, regarding
the construction project.

Costs associated with the bond issuance totaling $1,071,093.15 will be amortized over the life of
the bonds. Amortization for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $34,551.39 and

$17,275.70, respectively. Cumulative amortization of debt issuance costs at December 31, 2008
and 2007 were $51,827.09 and 17,275.70, respectively

11
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Notés to thie Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 9: GOVERNMENT REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The premium of $982,846.75 associated with the bond issue will be amortized as follows:

Note 10:

LITIGATION

Direct correspondence from the Organization’s solicitor revealed that there is currently no litigation,
claims, assessments or potential losses material to the financial statements.

Year Amortization Balance
2009 $0.00 $982,846.75
2010 156.20 982,690.55
2011 0.00 982,690.55
2012 151.80 982,842.35
2013 677.35 983,519.70
2014 1,500.75 985,020.45
2015 2,242.50 987,262.95
2016 3,011.65 990,274.60
2017 2,457.60 987,817.00
2018 1,866.15 989,683.15
2019 1,419.50 991,102.65
2020 2,231.25 993,333.90
2021 1,119.60 994,453.50
2022 13,020.70 981,432.80
2023 17,475.15 963,957.65
2024 20,559.00 943,398.65
2025 21,686.95 921,811.70
2026 22,614.90 899,196.80
2027 23,642.85 875,553.95
2028 76,753.60 798,800.35
2029 66,228.00 732,572.35
2030 69,539.40 663,032.95
2031 73,126.75 589,906.20
2032 76,714.10 513,192.10
2033 75,499.95 437,692.15
2034 79,391.70 358,300.45
2035 83,283.45 275,017.00
2036 87,953.55 187,063.45
2037 90,288.60 96,774.85
2038 96,774.85 0.00

12
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tes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 11:

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In regard to the Finlaw Building project as discussed in Note 9, change orders for the construction
budget required the Organization to seek additional funding sources necessary for completion. In order
to meet that obligation the City of Salem adopted a capital projects ordinance in 2008, in the amount of
$2,500,000.00 to provide additional funding in order to complete the project during 2009.

Cash flows regarding the Finlaw Building project as discussed in Note 9 have not been sufficient to
satisfy the debt service requirement. Interest payable due on February 15, 2009, August 15, 2009,
February 15, 2010, and August 15, 2010 were charged to the Debt Service Reserve fund which, in
accordance with the bond covenants, was reserved and then set aside from the bond proceeds
totaling $19,500,000.00. The possibility exists that future debt service requirements may have to be
funded by the City of Salem, the guarantor of the debt.

13

145



146



MAINAXSTREET

A Program of Stand Up For Salem, Inc.

150 West Broadway
P.O. Box 453
Salem, NJj 08079
856-935-8800

September 22, 2008

Bowman & Company LLP
6 N. Broad St., Suite 201
Woodbury, New Jersey 08096

We are providing this lefter in connection with your audit of the statement of financial position of Stand Up for
Salem, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2004, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the years then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion as {o whether the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, changes in net assets, and cash flows
of Stand Up for Salem, Inc. in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We confirm that
we are responsible for the fair presentation in the financiat statements of financial position, changes in net
assets, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. We are also responsible
for adopting sound accounting policies, establishing and maintaining internal control, and preventing and
detecting fraud.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 22, 2008, the following representations
made to you during your audit.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and include all assets and liabilities under the organization’s control.

2. We have made available to you all -

a. Financial records and related data and all audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from
funding sources.

b. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.

3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

4. There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

5. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the attached
schedule are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

6. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent
and detect fraud.

S
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7.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the organization involving-
a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal controls, or

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

8. We have no knowledge of any aliegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the organization received

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.

The organization has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, liabilities, or net asset balances.

The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related party transactions, including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements,
and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the organization is contingently liable.

c.  Allaccounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including the key factors
and significant assumptions underlying these estimates, and we believe the estimates are
reasonable in the circumstances.

There are no estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term that have not been
properly disclosed in the financial statements. We understand that near term means the period within one
year of the date of the financial statements. In addition, we have no knowledge of concentrations existing
at the date of the financial statements that make the organization vulnerable to the risk of severe impact
that have not been properly disclosed in the financial statements.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to audit objectives.

Stand Up for Salem, Inc. is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the organization’s tax-exempt status,
and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed
to you. All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

There are no --
a. Violations or possible violations of laws and regulations and provisions of contracts and grant

agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements as a basis
for recording a loss contingency or for reporting on noncompliance.

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion and
must be disclosed in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies.

¢. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5.
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d. Designations of net assets disclosed to you that were not properly authorized and approved, or
reclassifications of net assets that have not been properly reflected in the financial statements.

15. The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged.

16. We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all aspects of
contractual and grant agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the

event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor requirements to maintain a specific asset
composition necessary to satisfy their restrictions.

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the statement of financial
position date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial
statements or in the Exit Conference Report..

Signed: % /2«,1:{?_,)[

Title: L‘: yi e Al l’),, e it or
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MAINAXSTREET

A Program of Stand Up For Satem. Inc.

150 West Broadway
P.O. Box 453
Salem, Nj 08079
856-935-8800

September 22, 2008

David C. Rollison

Bowman & Company LLP

6 N. Broad St., Suite 201
Woodbury, New Jersey 08096

Dear Mr. Rollison:

in accordance with Section 3.18(a) of Government Auditing Standards as promulgated by the General
Accounting Office, Stand Up for Salem, Inc. acknowledges that it has responsibility for all draft financial
statements, notes to the financial statements, and all journal entries proposed by the auditor (including accrual
adjustments, if any). All items which you provided for our inspection have been reviewed. On behalf of Stand
Up for Salem, Inc., | hereby certify the approval of the financial statements, notes to the financial statements
and all journal entries proposed by the auditor for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2004.

Oy Doy 2o

Executive Director
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"BOWMAN & COMPANY w1r

%, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Stand Up For Salem, Inc.
Salem, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Stand Up For Salem, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) as of December 31, 2006 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Stand Up For Salem, Inc. as of December 31, 2006, and the results of its activities and the changes in
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.
/;Respe@ submitted,

BOWMAN & COMPANY LLP

Certified Public Accountants
& Consultanis

Woodbury, New Jersey
September 22, 2008

-1~

6 North Broad Street | Suite 201 | Woodbury, NJ 08096-4635 | P 856.853.0440 | F 856.845.4128 | www.bowmanllp.com
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Exhibit A
STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.
Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2006
Assels
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 165,418.31
Prepaid Expenses 748.20
Due from Landlord 74.60
Total Current Assets 166,241.11
Land, Building and Equipment 577,805.05
Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,653.48)
Net Land, Building and Equipment 576,151.57
Total Assets $ 742,392.68
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 50,678.18
Deposit on Property Held for Sale 1,000.00
Notes Payable - Line of Credit 533,241.53
Total Current Liabilities 584,919.71
Total Liabilities 584,919.71
Net Assets:
Unrrestricted 117,969.65
Temporarily Restricted 39,503.32
Total Net Assets 157,472.97
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 742,392 .68

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
o
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80485 Exhibit B
STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Unrestricted Net Assetls
Support

Contributions 115,575.00
County and Local Grant Funds 49,575.00
Fundraising Events 34,654.00
In-Kind Donations 75,890.00
Revenue
Programs 12,391.27
Program Management Fees 47,500.00
Sales 300.00
Miscellaneous 14,687.12
interest Income 225.65
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment (3,182.50)
Total Unrestricted Revenue and Support 347,615.54
Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Restrictions Satisfied by Program Payments 18,396.12
Expenses
Program Services 44,123.51
Support Services 168,915.80
Fundraising 11,617.02
Total Expenses 224 656.33
Reclassification to Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 19,846.96
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 121,508.37
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Support - State Grant Funds 19,912.50
Revenue - Programs 18,004.00
Revenue - Interest Income 135.98
Reclassification from Unrestricted Net Assets 19,846.96
Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Restrictions Satisfied by Program Paymenis (18,396.12)
Increase {(Decrease) in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 39,503.32
Increase (Decrease} in Net Assets 161,011.69
Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year (3,538.72)
Net Assets {Deficit) at End of Year 157,472.97

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-3-
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80485 Exhibit C
STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Cash Fiows From Operating Activities:
increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 161,011.69
Adjustment to Reconcile Changes in Net Assets
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 334.98
in-Kind Donations (75,890.00)
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment 3,182.50
{Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Prepaid Expenses 43.97
Due from Landlord (74.60)
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 25,753.66
Deposit on Property Held for Sale 1,000.00
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 115,362.20
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of Equipment (639.46)
Proceeds from Sale of Property 36,920.00

Construction-In-Progress - improvement/Renovations to Building
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds Received from Lines of Credit

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase {Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure Information:
Cash Flow:
Interest Paid

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Fair Value of Property Received by In-Kind Donation

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-4-
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STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Note 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities - Stand Up for Salem, Inc., located in the City of Salem in Salem County, New
Jersey is a nonprofit organization incorporated on July 19, 1988 for the purpose of preserving,
revitalizing and rehabilitating the buildings, land, homes and other articles that may relate to the history
and architecture of the City of Salem and surrounding areas, to promote, induce, assure and procure
the economic revitalization of the City and to foster low-income housing. The Organization is supported

primarily through grants, donations and fundraisers, which are further described in these Notes to the
Financial Statements.

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in
conformity with the standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
its Industry Audit Guide, "Not-For-Profit Organizations.”

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual resuits could differ from those
estimates.

Concentrations of Risk - Stand Up For Salem, Inc. receives a substantial portion of its revenue from
the City of Salem and local businesses. Support of $40,600 from the City and $60,000 from one
business represents approximately 11% and 16% of total revenues, respectively. A reduction in the
level of support, if such were to occur, may have an effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to credit risk include cash balances
maintained in several financial institutions which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $100,000 at each institution.
At December 31, 2006, the Organization’s cash on deposit totals $165,538.31 and uninsured cash
balances total $18,376.07. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization
considers all highly liquid investments available for current use held in checking, money market
accounts, and certificates of deposits as cash and cash equivalents.

Land, Building and Equipment - Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations
of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair market value. Such
donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated assetto
a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash
that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent
donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization
reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as
instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted
net assets at that time. Depreciated is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

Advertising Expense — The Organization expenses the cost of advertising as the expense is incurred.
For the year ended December 31, 20086, the cost totaled $2,750.00.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Statement Presentation - In 1995, the Organization adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations.” Under
SFAS No. 117, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Organization is required to present a
statement of cash flows.

Donated Services - The Organization receives certain administrative services from contributing
businesses at no cost and the Board of Directors performs their duties at no charge to the Organization.
The value of these contributions is not reasonably determinable; therefore, they are not reflected inthe
accompanying financial statements. In addition, individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of
tasks that assist the Organization but these services do not meet the criteria for recognition as
contributed services under SFAS No. 116.

Contributions - In 1995, the Organization adopted SFAS No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made." In accordance with SFAS No. 116, contributions received are
recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support depending on the
existence or nature of any donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricied net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions. Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions that are metin the same year
in which the contributions are received are classified as unrestricted contributions.

Promises to Give - Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. The contribution is recorded only when and if the
Organization invoices the donor for the promised amount. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the
contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are réeported as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Tax Exempt Status - The Organization is a nonprofit organization that is exempt from Federal income
tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for Federal or
State income tax is required.

LAND, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT

Land, building and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2006.

Construction-In-Progress $ 538,705.62
Property Held for Sale 35,000.00
Equipment 4,099.43
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,653.48)
Net Book Value $ 576,151.57

The total depreciation expense was $334.98 for 2006.

Construction-In-Progress consists of the acquisition, design, construction and operation of a project
which includes the acquisition of the Finlaw Building and other nearby properties in the City of Salem.
Construction is expected to be completed by April of 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements {(Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

DEPOSIT ON PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE

As of December 31, 2006 deposits on property held for sale consist of $1,000.00 for property located at
141 West Broadway, City of Salem, New Jersey. On October 4, 2007 the deposit was returned.

NOTES PAYABLE-LINE OF CREDIT

Stand Up for Salem, Inc. entered into an agreement on June 13, 2005 with Harvest Community Bank
establishing a $100,000 line of credit. The interest rate for amounts advanced is fixed at 3.50%. The
line of credit has an annual maturity and is secured by a guaranty of the City of Salem. Currently the
Organization has borrowed approximately $23,544.30 on the line.

Stand Up for Salem, Inc. entered into an agreement on August 18, 2006 with Harvest Community Bank
regarding a $500,000 line of credit. The interest rate for amounts advanced, is the Federal Fund Rate
plus %%. The line of credit has an annual maturity and is secured by a mortgage on the Finlaw Building
projectsite. The purpose of the line is to finance start up costs related to the Finlaw Building project and
was paid in full and closed upon issue of the bonds described in Note 10.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The policy of the Organization does not permit employees to accrue either vacation or sick days.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

Town Square Project % 4.311.01
Children Aid 48.74
Yuletide Program 12,436.06
Farmers Market 2,795.01
Community Insights Program 19,912.50

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 3950332

GRANT SUPPORT

Federal, State and Local Grants — Stand Up for Salem, Inc. received support from the County of

Salem, State of New Jersey and the City of Salem. Funding for 2006 consisted of the following:

Local
City of Salem - General Operating Contribution $ 40,000.00
City of Salem - Clean Communities Grant 600.00
County of Salem - Program Grants 8,975.00
State of New Jersey - Community Insights Program 19,912.50
Total $ 69,487.50
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 8:

Note 9:

Note 10:

IN-KIND DONATIONS

Bequest of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their estimated fair values in the period received.
During 2006 Stand Up For Salem, Inc. received in-kind donations of office furniture and property
estimated at a fair market value of $890.00 and $75,000.00 respectively. One property was sold on
September 1, 2006 at a loss of $3,182.50 while the remaining property estimated at $35,000.00 is held
for sale by the Organization as of December 31, 2006.

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

The Organization holds an annual dinner fundraiser to help fund various program costs. The following
is a summary of fundraising activities for the year ended December 31, 2006:

Annual

Dinner
Revenue $ 34,654.00
Direct Expenses 11,617.02
Net Revenue over Expenses $ 23,036.98

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Finlaw State Office Building Project:

On July 11, 2007, the Salem County Improvement Authority issued $19,500,000 in revenue bonds to
provide a foan to Stand Up For Salem, Inc. for the purpose of acquisition, design, construction and
operation of a project located at 195 East Broadway, commonly referred to as The Finlaw Building and
other nearby properties in the City of Salem, Salem County, New Jersey. The project consists of
property development, improvement, and construction of a five story office building in the approximate
size of 50,000 square feet and an adjacent parking facility. The bonds are secured by a loan
agreement dated July 1, 2007 between the Authority and Stand Up For Salem, Inc., a promissory note
dated July 1, 2007 from Stand Up For Salem, Inc. to the Authority in the amount of $19,500,000, and a
mortgage and security agreement dated July 1, 2007 from Stand Up For Salem, Inc. to the Authority.
The City of Salem, Salem County, New Jersey has guaranteed the payment, when due, of principal and
interest on the bonds. Also on July 1, 2007 Standup For Salem, Inc. executed an assignment of rents,
leases and parking revenues to Fulton Financial Advisors, N.A., the trustee of these bond funds, as
additional security for the payment of the principal and interest on the bonds. Leases for office space
and parking have been executed with various state agencies and other entities.

In regard to The Finlaw Building project as discussed in the preceding paragraph, Stand Up for Salem,
Inc. has indicated that additional costs of approximately six to seven percent of the project budget could
possibly exist. Such cosis are partially attributable to revisions relative to the foundation construction
based upon geotechnical conditions, The Developer indicated that cost over-runs regarding projects of
this size are within acceptable industry standards. Stand Up For Salem, Inc. has engaged certain
professionals possessing the technical expertise to assistin reviewing this matter. Furthermore, Stand
Up For Salem, Inc. is in the process of identifying potential funding sources to meet any additional
obligations associated with these construction cost over-runs. The relationship between the
construction contractor and Stand Up For Salem, Inc. remains positive while working together to resolve
any financial issues.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Note 10:

Note 11:

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont’d)

Line of Credit:

Stand Up for Salem, Inc. entered into an agreement on February 1, 2007 with Harvest Community Bank
regarding a $200,000 line of credit. The interest rate for amounts advanced, is the Federal Fund Rate
plus %%. The line of credit has an annual maturity and is secured by a mortgage on the Finlaw Building
project site. The purpose of the line is to finance start up costs related to the Finlaw Building project and
was closed on July 19, 2007.

LITIGATION

Stand Up for Salem, Inc. is currently a defendant in a civil suit. However, it is believed that the outcome
or potential losses to the Organization regarding such matter would not be material to the financial
statements.

161



162



00S'L$ ONISILEIAAY WYHOO0Hd| 1127025
H3SIVHANND ¥3INNIQ 1TV4 127025
S1NIAT ONISIVHANNL|Z'02S
S304NO0S ’3HL0|02S
009°'62i$ SAIHSHAGNIIN ¥O103S TIVAIHd TVLOL] WVIOL
'013 ‘SY3dVdSM3IN 'S 'INOdNd 'SY.LSIA M3N DLLNVIAIN
[ 'S31vOHIHDOV TVININILNOD 'SHOLVYOIHEYd 3O
W LIdSOH 'Va4a "HOHONY "¥3d009 'NOLONINNVYIA 000'001$ SNOILYHOdH0D/S3SSINISNE d3FHIO|L0LS
013 "LSYOWOD 'NOZIYIA
'SYD 1S ‘01410373 ALID OILNV1LY '©3Sd 000°02$ SALLITLN TVOO1|901S
000'7$ SIN3Qis3yd|sols
013 'NNS
‘HLHONMNYS AL ‘NIDINYY '1SIAHVH MNvE IHL 005'¢$ SNOILNLILSNI TVIONVNIZ |V 0LS
001% JOHINNOD 40 JIGINVHI|E0LS
000°¢$ S3SSANISNg NMOLNMOQ| L 0LS
000°55$
NV1d €002 3.1vadn ©3Sd|6°009
NV1d €00¢ 31vddn 000°52$ O.LYN NY1d NMOLNMOQ|8 005
INVYD TVAILSTH S1HV([L 008
ANVHO ONIHOLVIN ALNNOD 335 LNYH9 INJNLINYOIY SSANISNG vOa|9009
INVHD IAILYHIJ00D WSIHNOL 5005
INVHO ONIHOLYIN Y 000'G$ INVYO NVHO0Yd SLHV ALNNOD WITVYS|y 009
ANVHED INJNLINYDIY SSANISNG HOLVIN OL 000°0L$ ININNEIAOD ALNNOD|C 009
NFTVS 40 ALID 000'GL$ ININNYIAOCD TVdIDINNN| L 008G
H0L23S 211dNd|00§
SINIWIOD| 1viOolL JINOONI NOILdIRMOS3d] 340D
0102 INNC-600C ANC
MIIAYIAO0 139dNdg SSO1 ANV 1id0dd
| "ONI''INZTVS ¥0d4 dN ANV.LS

163




002°8£2$ JINCONI TV.LOL| V10l
005°7$ 1IMHVIN SHIWHYL TVLOL
INNIAZTH ¥IHLO LINEVIN SHINEVAS
000°c$ JOSNOJS LIMYVIN SHINAHVH|L6V 0CS
00S'1$ SINA LIMYUVIN SHIINYVYL]|18Y 05
005°.$ IVLOL WWAILSEH 3AILTTNA] TVIOL
00S'LS SdIHSYOSNOJS 3ALLATNA| VL 0CS
000°Z$ SAY NVHO0Hd 3AILITINA[ELY 0CG
Sav LYW3AJVld 3dlL3TNA|ZLY 028
000'7$ SATVS LIMOIL 3AILITNA|L LY 0TS
IVALLS3H JALLITNA| L 0CE
00L°L1$ TvLOL INNIATH AVHOO0Hd 43H1O| V101
009% SNOILLYNOd HSVD M0014|9¥ 0cS
S324N0S ¥3H1O| V10l
000'2$ SdIHSHOSNOJS ALYVYd X004 025
ANIWISHNGNIFY LHIHS CNSINjEY 0ZS
ONISILEIAQY INILDITI0D|C6Y 02
00S'L$ S3A1LvOI41LY30 1419 WITVS| 6 025
00l% S30HNOS Y3HL0|6°0¢5
00¢$ $3TVS AUVA NMOL|8'0¢S
009% S1YIHS IN3TVS|. 025
000'L$ SNOILVYNQOQ DY1412°0¢S
JWOONI LS3YLINI|G0cS
JNNIAZY NVID0Ud d3HLO|Y 028
00s‘0e$ Tv.1OL ¥3SIVEHANND ¥INNIG T1vd| V1Ol
000°L$ ATNO SNOILYNOQ ¥3INNIA|8LZ02S
000°GI$ SdIHSYOSNOJS J3NNIA|¥12°0¢S
000'8$ SIS AT79V.L ANV LIMOILIELZ0CS
000'G$ NOLLONY INJIS{Z1¢02S

164



000'L$ S3TVS dUVA NMOLiS1 0€8
005$ AVYHO0Yd OV14|1 L 0€8
00S'/$ IVAILSIH FAILITNAJOL 0E8
33 LLINNOD NOILOINOYd|10¢8
SAVHO0YHC!I0E8
00148 v1OL LINFIWNJOTIAIA TYNOISSF40dd] V101
0093 SdIHSHIGWIW/SNOILLIIOSINS|€°0¢8
'013 'S1410H 000'G$ 13AVHL IONIHIANOD(2028
VIHd12AVY1IHd - ONILIIN NMOL TYNOLLYN 00G'L$ NOLLYHLSIOIY JONIHIANOD| |08
LNINJOT1IAIA TVNOISSI40dd|028
00L°LP$ IVLOL SISN3IdX3 3D1440] TV.LOL
ONLLIANY NYINMOS 000'21$ VO3 ANY ONILNNOOOV(CL 018
000°€$ AONZONILNOD|1L 018
006'C$ JONVHNSNI|6018
00€3 AHAVHOOLOHd ({8018
00C'1$ ONIAJOD OLOHd/ONILNIYA|L 018
00Z'L$ 3JOV1S0d|{90!8
000°€$ INOHJ3131]59018
005'L$ S31NddNs 301440(v 018
SVO TVINLYN ANV O1d.L0313 000'6$ S3ILNILN|20oL8
000'9% 1IN3H|1 018
S3SN3d4XH 331440048
000°86$ J3NNOSH3Idl WioL
(syjuow 9) NOLONIGAVYM WIF ‘NOQ “DHVIN 000'2Z$ 44V1S TYNOLLIAdVY|€008
1HOdNIAVA SIdHI 000°21$ SL1I4IN3E ¥0.1234Id|2008
uoiNgUIu0d Ol sepnjoul * 1HOJNIAVA SI¥HO 000'65$ S3ANVYIVS H01034Id] 1008
J13NNOSY3d(008
SINIWINOD| TVLOL | SESNILXH NOILLdIMOs3d| 3d0J

165



1NVHO TVAILSIH S1dV

G'ov8

LNVHO S1dV

¥ 0v8

SIDINYIS/SINV.LINSNOD

L 0y8

SNVYYD0Hd LNVHO

018

00S'v$

TYLOL ONIMNLONYLSIY DINONOOS

wv1loL

OSOr - JONVLSISSY TVNOISS340dd

ANINLINGOIY SSIANISNE

GG'0E8

0051 $

S3LVOIdILY30 1dI9 WITVS

£6°0€8

000'€$

ISNIAXT ONISILHIAAY FAILDTTIOD

¢50€8

aNNd dN NY310 ONIdTING

160¢8

J3LLINNOD OZ_N_D._.ODM_._.wmm DINONODT

508

000°€L$

Tv.LOL SLNIAS ONISIVHANNS

Wwi01

000'L$

HIHLO ONISIVIHANNA

(440X

000°21$

H3ASIVEHANND HINNIA TVNNNY

Ly 0e8

SLINIAT ONISIVHANNA

¥ 0€8

009$

Tv.LOL 3FLLINNOD NOIS3d

jiAKe:]

SIALLNIONI NOISId ¥3HL0

Ov 08

AVHO0Hd SNOIS 1334.1S

¥€0€8

0093

SININIAOYdINI 3dVISLITHLS

€e0¢e8

INTWIAOHINI 3aAvdVS

¢e'0e8

SNDIS FONVHLNT NMOL SZANTONI

NYHO0Hd INFWIAOHININDIS

L£0E8

F3LLINWNOD NOIs3d

£0¢e8

009°9¢$

TvLOL FFLLINNOD NOILOIWOYHd

000'7$

1534 D44

vi0L

INVHO S1HV ALNNOD NFTVS

000'6$

LIMHVIN S HTIINYVAS

10€°0€8

000°€$

Y3IHLO F3LLININOD NOLLOWOYHd

0€’0e8

009%

1S3INOJ AVSSI MIN

0Z0¢c8

INVHO SLHV ALNNOD NITVS

000°c$

1534134809

610¢€8

S1HIHS 'NSIN

81°0¢8

000°8$

ALHVYd MO01d TVNNNY

110¢8

166



00L°2¢2$

SISNALdXE TVLOL

00Z°L$

SONIQTING H0d4 S3NddNS

€006

009°Z$

3SN3IdXT LSFHTLINI

¢'006

SNOILNGIHLNOD

Vi0oL

NYEO0Hd .34NS. NOLLNGIHLNOD

1006

000°s€$

TVLOL SNYHOO0Hd LNVHO

000°0L$

OLHN ©%35d

006

000628

014N VOd

SINVHOOYUd LNVYD

RAALORN

167



168



0 01 00ST¥T

sabe\ Ul SINOH J193)unjoA

0 010005.€¢¢

(ereaud+o11gnd) Juswisanu| 101

0 01 0005.€¢¢

luswi]saAu

| 81eAld €101

'SA uolesadp weibolid

199J1S Ule\ ul JuswilsaAul dljgnd

0GGEST 0C0ET 62 v1O0Ll
0 0 0 juswdojanag abew
059/.9 0SS 61 SlJUaAd [lelay
00658 00S. 0T S|eASa/SIusng [erdads
suoissaidwi|| aouepuany| # _ adAL
Jea A SIUL S8IlIAII0Y/SIUSAT [euollowOld
wiolanvaofszor ] vioufsser | wioifzetz__ ]
[€101gNS|0 [e1019ns|0
18yl0|0 J1BY10|0
uonowoid|o uonowoid|o
d3(0 d3(0
ubisaalo ubisaglo
uoneziueblQ|o uoneziueblQ|o
preog|o preog|o
[euoissajoid [euoissajoid
[e101gNS|8E6Y [ejogns|/e1e
1834y10|02T J1BY10|0
uonowoid|8¢Te uonowold|6v8
d3(0 d3(20T
ubisaalovs ubiseq|/eT
uoneziueblQlogs uoireziuebio|y02
pseog|0 preod|Sie

plepuels
SuondUNS Jo9NS UrRN Joj/ur ajdoad J0 SBIO 1810

plepuels

uoneziueblQ 19a1S ureyy

umopiesalg jusaWlSaAU|l SINOH J93lun|OA

| 00'005'9TS 22

$ ]

(SINOH "|OA "[oU1) JUBUISBAUIRY 10UISI 81.ALd TV.1O1)

| 00 00s‘TH'T

$ ]

sobe/\ Ul SINOH J93JuNjoA aleAlld [ejol ]

lo 0100052622

S10U)SIQ Ul JUSWISaAU [BdISAUd Dljgnd 0) 81eAlld V1O L JO one|

0010

sjuawaoidul] dljgnd Ul JUBWISBAU| d1jgNd 0) 81BALd JO oney

0 01 00000¢ce

sjuswaoidw) *Bp|g Ul IUBWISBAU| d1jgNd 01 81BALd JO oney

0010

uoneAOUSY apede- Ul JUBWISaAU| d1|qnd O} 8eAlld JO oley

0 01 00000c¢C

uone|igeyay ‘Bp|g Ul uswlSaAU| dl|gqnd 0) aleAlld Jo oney

[4

ureo qor 1sN

L

ures) papuedx3/paleal) ssauisng 18N

00'000'G.€'22

JuswISanuIRy [ed1sAyd 1011SIa TVLOL

00'000'G.€'2e

JUBWISaAUIRY 31eAlld V101

&R A

juswsaAuIdy 9lIqnd V101

(reuoissajold) SINOH JaaluN|oA $|

00°00S‘TY¥T

@D

(prepuels) sINoH J1931UnjoA $

0

payeald snun BuisnoH Jo #

WawaAoidw| 21gNd/I8YI0 Ul JUBWISBAU| 81eALd $

@ | D

JusWaA0IdW| 21gNd/IBLYI0 Ul JUsWisaAU| dignd ¢

0

(Aem-j0-1yBu1 211gnd ur) Juswanoidw 311gNd/2MISIA JBUIO JO #

00°000'002'22

uonoNJisuod/uoneliqeyay bulp(ing Ul JUBWISaAU| dYeAld $

&@H|H

uondNnsuUoD/uonel|IcRYSY Bulp|ing Ul JuswisaAu| alignd $

0

S193l01d UONONNSUOD MBN JO #

0

suoneniiqeysy buiping Jo #

UOI1RI0ISaY/UONBAOUSY Bpede Ul JUBWISBAU| 81eAlld $

uOIRI0)SaY/UOIIRAOUSY BpedeH Ul JuawisaAu| dligqnd $

0

aouelsissy ubisag CNSW Buisn s1oalold pais|dwo) Jo #

0

uonelolsay/uonenouay (buiumy/abeubis joul) apeded Jo #

00'000'G.T

saseyoind Aadold Ul juawisanu| ajeAld $

saseyoind Auadoid uruswisaAu| olgnd $

0

paseyaingd sanadold 10 #

ST

(314) 1s07 sqor Jo #

T

paso|) ssauisng o #

A4

(314) pereaid sqor Jo #

0

papuedx3 ssauisng JO #

8

paleal) ssaulsng JO #

0T0¢/0¢/0T

1991]1S Ule|\ waljes

ATewwing spoday A[JelenO-A[JIUON/IUSWISaAUTeY 9pIMaTelS 6002

169



170



Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
' P. O. Box 2508

Cincinnati, OH 44201

Date: April 10, 2007 Person to Contact:

Stephanie Swartzbaugh 31-07594

Customer Service Specialist
STAND UP FOR SALEM INC Toll Free Telephone Number:
PO BOX 453 877-829-5500
SALEM NJ 08079-0453 Federal Identification Number:

22-2908783

Dear Sir or Madam:
This is in response to your request of April 10, 2007, regarding your organization’s tax-exempt
status. v :

In September 1989 we issued a determination letter that recognized your organization as exempt
from federal income tax. Our records indicate that your organization is currently exempt under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records indicate that your organization is also classified as a public charity under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records indicate that contributions to your organization are deductible under section 170 of the
Code, and that you are qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises

, transfers or gifts
under section 2055, 2106 or 2522 of the Internal Revenue Code.
If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number shown in the heading of this
" letter.
Sincerely,

e . ottt

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations 1
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'FILE

JUL 19 1988

JANE BURGIO
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION Secretary of Btate

OF

STAND UP FOR SALEM, INC.

The undersigned hereby form a corporation under the
Non-Profit Corporation Act of the State of New Jersey, Title
15A.

ARTICLE I. NAME. The name of the Corporation is
Stand Up For Salem, Inc.

ARTICLE I1X. TERM. The term of the Corporation shall
be perpetual and the effective date of the Certificate of Incor-
poration shall be the date of filing.

ARTICLE III. PURPOSES. The Corporation is organized
to operate exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United|
States Internal Revenue law) and, more specifically: to
research, discover, procure, purchase, restore and aésure the
preservation, revitalization and rehabilitation of buildings,
land, homes or other articles that may relate to the history
and architecture of commercial areas of the City of Salem situate
in the County of Salem, in the State of New Jersey; to promote(
induce, assure and procure the economic revitalization of the

said City of Salem; to hire appropriate personnel to conduct
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corporation activities, to hold meetings and other activities
for the instruction and information of members and the public;
and to accept donations of money, real property or other property
for the above purposes.

ARTICLE IV. POWERS. The Corporation shall have,
without limitation by the specification thereof, the following
powers, all of which shall be exercised exclusively in connection
with the promoting or carrying out of the purposes of the Corpo-
ration mentioned in Article IITI hereof: to undertake, either
alone or in conjunction or cooperation with others, any lawful
acts and things and engage in any and all lawful activities which
may be necessary, useful, suitable or desirable for the further-
ance of any or all the purposes for which the Corporation is
organized and to aid or assist other organizations, the activi-
ties of which are such as to further any of such purposes.

ARTICLE V. MEMBERS. The Corporation shall have no
members.

ARTICLE VI. BOARD OF TRUSTEES. The management and
control of the Corporation shall be vested in a Board of Trustees
which shall be elected in the manner provided in the bylaws.

ARTICLE VII. PROSCRIBED ACTIVITIES.

1. The Corporation is nonprofit and no part of the

Corporation's income is distributable to its Trustees or officers
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and the Corporation shall not have or issue shares of stock or
pay dividends. The Corporation does not contemplate pecuniary
gain or profit incidental or otherwise.

2. The Corporation is organized and, notwithstanding
any other provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation, shall
be operated exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, and the regulations thereunder, as the same now
exist and may hereafter be amended from time to time.

3. In no event shall any part of the net earnings of
the Corporation inure to the benefit of, or be distributable
to, its Trustees or officers or to other private persons, except
that the Corporation shall be authorized‘and empowered to pay
reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make pay-
ments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth
in Article III hereof.

4. No substantial part of the activities of the
Corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda or otherwise
attempting to influencé legislation, nor shall the Corporation
participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or
distributing of statements), any political campaign on behalf
of any candidate for public office.

5. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Certifi-

cate of Incorporation, the Corporation shall not carry on any
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other activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation,
contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and the regulations thereunder
as the same now exist or may hereafter be amended from time to
time.

6. If the Corporation shall be or become a private
foundation as such term is defined by Section 509, then the
Corporation shall be required to distribute its income for each
taxable year at such time in such manner as not to subject it
to tax under Section 4942, and the Corporation shall be
prohibited from engaging in any act of self-dealing (as defined
in Section 4941(d)), from making any investments in such manner
to subject the Corporation to tax under Section 4944, and from
making any taxable expenditures (as defined in section 4945(d4d)) .
The statutory references in this Paragraph 6 are to the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, and the regulations thereunder as the same
now exist and may hereafter be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE VIII. DISSOLUTION. In the event of the
dissolution of the Corporation, all its assets remaining, after
the payment of all debts and obligations of the Corporation,
shall be distributed to such one or more organizations which
have purposes and objects similar to those of this Corporatioﬁ
and are exempt from United States income taxes under the provi-

sions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
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as the Board of Trustees may select, and if more than one, in
such shares and proportions as the Board of Trustees may deter-
mine.

ARTICLE IX. ADDRESS. The address of the initial
registered office of the Corporation is: Mannington Mills, Inc.,
Mannington Mills Road, P.0O. Box 30, Salem, New Jersey, 08079.
The name of the initial registered agent at the foregoing office
is Robert Scott Smith.

ARTICLE X. The first Board of Trustees shall consist
of four (4) Trustees, whose names and addresses are asﬁfollows:

NAME ADDRESS

Robert Scott Smith RR #3, Box 286B
Forsythia Lane
Woodstown, NJ 08098

Wilbur J. Sutton, Jr. E.I. DuPont De Nemours
& Company
Chambers Works
Deepwater, NJ 08023

David S. Blew Atlantic City Electric
Company
Box 517
Bridgeton, NJ 08302

Westen H. Denman Public Service Electric
& Gas Company
P.O. Box 236
Hancocks Bridge, NJ 08038
ARTICLE XI. INCORPORATOR. The name and address of
the incorporator is as follows:
Robert Scott Smith RR # 3, Box 286B

Forsythia Lane
Woodstown, NJ 08098
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Christopher Davenport

23 Van Meter Terrace
Salem, New Jersey 08079
856-279-2176
Chris@Salemcitynj.com

Qualifications

20 years of progressive experience in urban economic and community development. Specialty has been
uniting diverse stakeholders in distressed urban areas. Consensus builder, energetic and pragmatic.
Motivated to effect real change, comfortable in multiple settings and able to work with or without resources
and support staff. Technically savvy, computer literate, creative and resourceful with a sense of humor.

Education

Graduate, Main Street New Jersey Downtown Revitalization Institute - 2001
Master of Urban Planning, New York University, NY, NY - 1992

Bachelor of Science, Business Marketing, Messiah College, Harrisburg, PA — 1986

Relevant Experience

Executive Director, Stand Up For Salem Inc., Salem New Jersey: 1999 - present

Hired to resurrect bankrupt and defunct agency into New Jersey Main Street Program and Development
Corporation. Worked in partnership with local community, business leaders and city government to develop
Salem Main Street Revitalization Master Plan/Redevelopment Area, award winning main street program
and directly owned/operated real estate projects totaling 30 million in a small distressed community in
southern New Jersey (Wilmington DE metro area).

Director of Economic Development, South Brooklyn Local Development Corporation: 1997-1999

Director of Economic Development, Southwest Brooklyn Industrial Development Corporation: 1994-1997
Economic Development Consultant, Brooklyn, Manhattan and Bronx NY Non Profits: 1992-1994

Other Experience

Youth Counselor, TIP Neighborhood House, Bronx NY: 1990-1992

Graduate Intern, City of New York, 1991 — NYC Dept. of Mental Health

Outreach Worker, Bronx Community Service Ministries, Brethren in Christ Church, Bronx, NY: 1986-1988
Volunteer Youth Soccer Coach 2001-2010, NJYSL “F” License

References Available Upon Request
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